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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good afternoon.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation. My name is John Liu,

          5  and I have the privilege of chairing this Committee.

          6                 I want to thank everybody for being

          7  here, and hopefully there are no severe space

          8  issues. If anybody is having a real difficult time

          9  with the space and their seat, please let the

         10  sergeants know and we'll accommodate you to the best

         11  of our ability.

         12                 Today the Committee will hold a

         13  hearing on 11 bills designed to improve the taxicab

         14  and for-hire vehicle industries in New York City,

         15  with respect to accessibility and the use of clean

         16  air vehicles.

         17                 The 11 bills are Intro. No. 37,

         18  introduced by Council Member Yassky, which would

         19  wave TLC licensing fees for compressed natural gas

         20  vehicles and the most efficient hybrid efficient

         21  electric vehicles.

         22                 Proposed Intro. No. 90-A is a bill

         23  that I have introduced that would limit the number

         24  of contracts that a provider of accessible for-hire

         25  vehicle service could have, as well as require base
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          2  stations, with at least ten cars, to have at least

          3  one accessible vehicle.

          4                 Proposed Intro. No. 158-A, introduced

          5  by Council Member Yassky, would extend the service

          6  life of hybrid electric vehicles while cutting in

          7  half the service life of regular gasoline-powered

          8  vehicles.

          9                 Intro. No. 352, introduced by Council

         10  Member Gennaro, would require the Taxi and Limousine

         11  Commission to develop and implement a plan to

         12  increase the number of hybrid electric taxicabs.

         13                 The fifth bill, Intro. 353, also

         14  introduced by Council Member Gennaro, would require

         15  clean-air taxis to be clearly identified as such and

         16  for the Taxi and Limousine Commission to provide

         17  information about such vehicles.

         18                 Intro. No. 354, introduced by Council

         19  Member Koppell, would require accessible taxicabs to

         20  display the international wheelchair insignia on

         21  their exteriors.

         22                 Intro. No. 355, also introduced by

         23  Council Member Koppell, would require the TLC to

         24  approve specifications for and create a competition

         25  to build an accessible hybrid electric vehicle.
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          2  Former bills.

          3                 Intro. No. 356, also introduced by

          4  Council Member Koppell, would create a central

          5  accessibility dispatch system for taxicabs and

          6  for-hire vehicles.

          7                 Intro. No. 357, a bill that I have

          8  introduced, would allow accessible for-hire vehicles

          9  to park in special vehicle identification permit

         10  areas, while loading or unloading passengers.

         11                 And Intro. No. 361, introduced by

         12  Council Member Yassky, would extend the license term

         13  for base stations with hybrid electric vehicles,

         14  and, finally, Intro. No. 378, introduced by Council

         15  Member Koppell, would create deadlines for phasing

         16  in accessible and hybrid electric vehicles with

         17  respect to the taxicab fleet.

         18                 Accessibility to people who use

         19  wheelchairs and clean air vehicles for taxis and

         20  for-hire vehicles, are priorities of the City

         21  Council, all New Yorkers should be able to use

         22  taxicabs and for-hire vehicles, especially New

         23  Yorkers who use wheelchairs who cannot access much

         24  of our public transportation network.

         25                 The need for more clean air vehicles
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          2  is obvious in our City where we continue to have

          3  high asthma rates and traffic congestion everywhere.

          4  Because of the benefits that accessible and

          5  alternative fuel vehicles provide to the public,

          6  their numbers should be increased, and hence we have

          7  put together this package of legislation.

          8                 We do have a full docket today. I

          9  hope that witnesses and my colleagues, myself

         10  included, will take this into consideration and

         11  attempt to make our questions and comments as

         12  concise as possible so that we may hear from

         13  everyone.

         14                 We do have a large number of people

         15  who have signed up to testify. After we spend

         16  whatever time it takes to deliberate these bills

         17  with the officials of the Taxi and Limousine

         18  Commission, we will then call upon witnesses from

         19  the general public and we will at that point impose

         20  a limit within which I would ask you to provide your

         21  testimony, and I expect that our hearing this

         22  afternoon will be completed by 4:00 p.m.

         23                 We are joined by Council Members

         24  Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan, Council Member

         25  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan, Council Member Andrew
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          2  Lanza from Staten Island, Council Member Joseph

          3  Addabbo from Queens, Council Member Jim Gennaro from

          4  Queens, Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

          5  Bronx, and I want to thank the terrific work of the

          6  staff to not only the Transportation Committee, but

          7  also the Committee on Environmental Protection, and

          8  the Committee chaired by Council Member Oliver

          9  Koppell, and he'll introduce his Committee in a

         10  moment.

         11                 Thank you very much for joining us,

         12  and at this point, let me offer the floor to my

         13  colleagues who have introduced the bills today,

         14  Council Member Gennaro and/or Koppell.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 I don't want to give a lengthy

         18  statement, we put a number of alternatives, and I

         19  say we, I think that's collectively, I've been the

         20  prime sponsor of a number of different alternatives

         21  to try and achieve the result of having a taxi fleet

         22  that is both as accessible as possible, and also as

         23  environmentally protective as possible. And we've

         24  given all sorts of alternatives that were developed

         25  by the staff to give an opportunity to people who

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  will say which alternatives they favor. Some may

          3  favor all, some may favor none, some may favor some.

          4  I think that's really the purpose of this kind of

          5  hearing.

          6                 We have different kinds of hearings.

          7  This is a hearing for you to really indicate to us

          8  which direction you think the Council should go, and

          9  I think it's a very good way of proceeding. We're

         10  not just putting one idea in front of you, we're

         11  putting a whole host of ideas.

         12                 I do want to mention, only because

         13  the staff has done a terrific job of putting

         14  together these alternatives, and I just want to

         15  mention their names, because they deserve to be

         16  mentioned. Phillip Hom, who is with the

         17  Transportation Committee; Donna DeCostanzo, with the

         18  Environmental Committee; Mari DePedro, who is

         19  Counsel with the Committee I chair, which has

         20  disability rights as part of its mandate; Roberto

         21  Ragone, Special Projects Coordinator; Josh

         22  Nachowitz, Policy Analyst, behind me; Esteban Duran,

         23  Policy Analyst, I'm not sure whether he's here or

         24  not; and we have Finance Analysts, Chima Obichere

         25  and Rocco D'Angelo; and we have two Communications

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  people, John Collins, and Angel Audiffred.

          3                 So, all of those people worked as a

          4  task force for the Council, the Committees worked

          5  together, and I think we've come up with some

          6  proposals, hopefully a number of them will in fact

          7  move ahead. So, we look forward to hearing from

          8  various witnesses.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         10  Member Koppell.

         11                 Council Member Gennaro.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman. I wish to thank you in a special way

         14  for your leadership on this issue. You have long

         15  been a leader with respect to all of the issues

         16  facing taxicabs and overall transportation. It's

         17  been a pleasure to work with you and with your

         18  staff. Council Member Koppell, I've been happy to

         19  serve on your Committee, and you on mine,

         20  Environmental Committee, so it's great that we could

         21  work together.

         22                 I want to thank in a special way the

         23  Speaker of the Council, Chris Quinn, for helping to

         24  orchestrate the various central staff members to

         25  work together to come with this comprehensive

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  package of bills.

          3                 I have profound respect for all

          4  members of the Committee who are here today and

          5  interested in this topic and all the advocates that

          6  have come forward in the environmental community, in

          7  the community of people with disabilities, I

          8  certainly want to work very closely with the

          9  industry, and, so I thank you all for your time and

         10  attention here.

         11                 And as Oliver stated, we hope to move

         12  some of these bills. And Chairman Liu, I just want

         13  to thank you again in a special way for bringing

         14  this all together to this good day that we have

         15  before us.

         16                 So, thank you, all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         18  Member Gennaro.

         19                 At this time I'd like to invite the

         20  officials from the Taxi and Limousine Commission to

         21  testify.

         22                 We have Andy Salkin, the First Deputy

         23  Commissioner, and Peter Schenkman. Welcome,

         24  gentlemen.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:
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          2  Thank you, Chairman.

          3                 First I want to let everyone know

          4  that Chairman, Commissioner Daus had every

          5  anticipation on being here today, unfortunately he

          6  got called away on some personal business, so he

          7  sends his apologies for not being here.

          8                 With that said, I'm planning to read

          9  his testimony, so if you bear with me and the

         10  awkwardness of me kind of referring to myself or

         11  saying "I," I hope you can deal with that. So, it is

         12  a rather lengthy testimony because there are 11

         13  bills, so your courtesy is welcome. So with that

         14  said:

         15                 "Good afternoon, Chairman Liu and

         16  members of the Transportation Committee. Thank you

         17  for the opportunity to appear before you today to

         18  testify regarding a series of recent introduced

         19  Council bills relating to access, accessible and

         20  clean-air taxicabs and for-hire vehicles.

         21                 Also joining me are Andrew Salkin,

         22  our First Deputy Commissioner, and Peter Schenkman,

         23  our Assistant Commissioner for Safety and Emissions.

         24                 Turning to the main topic of today's

         25  hearing, since there are eleven bills that are the
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          2  subject of this hearing, my testimony is much longer

          3  than usual, so I will attempt to summarize generally

          4  by making three key points:

          5                 First, many of the bills address

          6  goals that the TLC and the Bloomberg Administration

          7  have already indicated their support for,  and

          8  they've been working with the Council to achieve a

          9  clean and fuel-efficient for-hire transportation

         10  system, accessible to all New Yorkers is something

         11  we can all agree on.

         12                 Second, the specifics of many of the

         13  bills are good starting points for further research,

         14  discussion and eventual implementation.

         15                 The TLC's Charter mandate is to

         16  develop and implement transportation policy

         17  governing for-hire transportation.

         18                 The TLC staff has been working

         19  diligently to meet many of the same goals that these

         20  bills seek to accomplish.

         21                 To this end, TLC staff has conducted

         22  extensive outreach and research, which includes

         23  traveling across the country to participate in

         24  national conferences, and to meet with other

         25  regulators, as well as meeting with industry
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          2  representatives and riders.

          3                 And we have begun to work on drafting

          4  or implementing Commission rules to achieve these

          5  goals.

          6                 I am grateful for the opportunity to

          7  share some of the results of that hard work.

          8                 Third, the issues raised by the bills

          9  being discussed today are complicated and deserve

         10  serious thought and consideration, and I'm gratified

         11  that the Council is joining us in focusing on them.

         12                 Mayor Bloomberg and the TLC are

         13  committed to the goal of cleaner and more

         14  fuel-efficient for-hire transportation system

         15  accessible to all New Yorkers.

         16                 Let me outline just a few of the

         17  steps we have taken.

         18                 The TLC has been at the forefront of

         19  promoting the use of clean vehicles in our regulated

         20  industries for several decades. For more than 25

         21  years, the TLC has operated its own inspection

         22  facility at which every taxicab must pass emissions

         23  testing every four months.

         24                 For more than 20 years, the TLC rules

         25  have required that all for-hire vehicles pass
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          2  similar emissions tests at DMV facilities every four

          3  months.

          4                 For the past ten years, the TLC has

          5  enforced taxicab vehicle retirement rules, that have

          6  pushed the average age of taxicab from over eight

          7  years down between three and four years old. As any

          8  automotive expert can tell you, newer cars are

          9  cleaner cars.

         10                 At the same time, the TLC implemented

         11  a series of incentives to encourage the use of CNG

         12  vehicles has taxicabs, such as extensions of vehicle

         13  retirement, allowing the transfer of CNG vehicles to

         14  new owners.

         15                 In January of 2005, we began working

         16  with the State's Department of Environmental

         17  Conservation and the State DMV to pilot a new

         18  emissions test called OBD-II. Today that information

         19  garnered from our taxicab inspections will help the

         20  State meet its EPA requirements for emissions

         21  reduction reports.

         22                 Last fall, with the guidance from the

         23  Mayor and the Council, the TLC approved

         24  specifications for the use of hybrid electric

         25  vehicles - since then, 25 hybrids have been placed
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          2  into service, nearly one-third are being voluntarily

          3  operated with unrestricted or standard medallions.

          4                 Last month, the TLC attended a

          5  national conference on alternative fuels - the Clean

          6  Cities Congress and Expo - to learn more about the

          7  different clean fuel technologies in use today, and

          8  those planned for the future.

          9                 And most recently, the Mayor

         10  announced two weeks ago that the City would increase

         11  the total number of hybrid or CNG taxicabs in

         12  service to nearly 300 with this June's medallion

         13  sale.

         14                 Earlier this week, TLC staff

         15  organized and held information sessions for

         16  potential bidders that featured some of the hybrid

         17  electric and CNG vehicles that will be available for

         18  use with these new medallions.

         19                 We have also taken important steps

         20  towards developing a truly accessible for hire

         21  system.

         22                 In 2000, the TLC passed rules

         23  requiring the FHV bases to provide service on an

         24  equivalent basis to passengers who use wheelchairs.

         25                 Today, every currently licensed base
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          2  has the ability to provide wheelchair accessible

          3  service.

          4                 At our last medallion sale, the City

          5  auctioned off the first medallions reserved for use

          6  with wheelchair accessible taxicabs. Twenty-seven

          7  vehicles were put in service early last year as the

          8  first step in monitoring the performance of

          9  accessible service as New York City taxicabs.

         10                 Based on these experiences, as well

         11  as extensive research and input from advocacy

         12  groups, the TLC developed and adopted new

         13  specifications for wheelchair accessible taxicabs

         14  just a few months ago.

         15                 A few weeks ago before the Committee,

         16  I announced our intention to develop a

         17  demand-responsive dispatch system available to

         18  better meet the needs of wheelchair users.

         19                 TLC staff has been working on that

         20  proposal for several months and is exploring how it

         21  could be implemented through Commission rule-making.

         22                 Most recently, the Mayor and the

         23  Council announced the proposal to place more than

         24  200-wheelchair accessible taxicabs into service.

         25  Fifty-four of those taxis will be in service later
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          2  this summer, and the remaining 150 are awaiting

          3  State approval.

          4                 The TLC will continue to make efforts

          5  to encourage the use of these vehicles in all of our

          6  industries and evaluate their effectiveness and

          7  performance through our inspection process.

          8                 Regulating industries will place

          9  these vehicles into service so the TLC can monitor

         10  whether they can withstand the unique challenges of

         11  service in New York City. The public will let us

         12  know through ridership numbers and consumer feedback

         13  about their impressions of these vehicles.

         14                 The issues of alternative fuel and

         15  wheelchair accessibility do present challenges and

         16  sound policy dictates that we should carefully build

         17  upon the momentum we've gained by learning and

         18  understanding before regulating and mandating.

         19                 For example, CNG vehicles were once

         20  the future of a taxicab fleet. But a range of

         21  concerns, most prominently a lack of fueling

         22  infrastructure, has left only one or two CNG

         23  taxicabs on the road today. There have been some

         24  recent developments on the CNG front and the

         25  momentum may be building again.
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          2                 Also, hybrid electric technology has

          3  become the latest wave in the auto industry. We are

          4  excited by the early success of hybrids, although I

          5  do know that just last month Toyota issued a recall

          6  notice for nearly 200,000 early model Prius's.

          7                 On the issue of accessibility, while

          8  the rules passed in 2000 by the TLC to mandate

          9  equivalent for-hire vehicle service from the bases

         10  has certainly represented progress, the system has

         11  not led to the outcomes that meet all the needs of

         12  wheelchair users.

         13                 Similarly, the only vehicles that

         14  have been used as an accessible taxicab had not

         15  performed well. We need to rethink how accessible

         16  service gets provided. We have already made changes

         17  to vehicle specifications, and there are other

         18  changes we can make to our rules and new

         19  technologies that can be utilized.

         20                 Our goal is to have a fully

         21  accessible fleet, but we have to make the right

         22  decisions about what kind of vehicles that means.

         23                 A thoughtful and ongoing policy

         24  discussion can help us work through many of the

         25  potential problems.

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 I should note that for the past two

          3  weeks my staff has expended considerable time

          4  reviewing these bills and trying to understand their

          5  intent and potential impact.

          6                 While many seem tailored to work

          7  together, some appear to be in conflict, or to offer

          8  overlapping approaches to the same policy objective.

          9                 However, we do look forward to

         10  hearing the testimony offered today to assist us in

         11  the development of sound policy and plan with the

         12  Council.

         13                 Before turning to the 11 bills that

         14  are the subject of today's hearing, let me once

         15  again thank the Council for its leadership on the

         16  issues of clean air and accessible vehicles.

         17                 I am pleased to be able to state my

         18  agreement with the number of the principles in these

         19  bills at issue here today. Perhaps foremost I am

         20  pleased that the Council is expanding its vision

         21  from taxicabs to the entire for-hire transportation

         22  industry.

         23                 I am pleased that the Committee is

         24  considering the concept I proposed when I last

         25  appeared before you, namely developing a centralized
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          2  dispatch center, as a means of efficiently providing

          3  accessible service to the riding public.

          4                 At least one of the bills broadens

          5  the focus from hybrid electric vehicles to clean air

          6  technologies, more generally, a shift and approach

          7  that I whole-heartedly endorse.

          8                 Also, the Council's interest in

          9  incentives constitutes a commendable recognition

         10  that while mandates can sometimes play a part,

         11  incentives are more often an important first step.

         12                 In short, every bill being considered

         13  in today's agenda contains a concept I can agree

         14  with.

         15                 I am hopeful that this is the

         16  beginning of an important conversation that will

         17  yield a program of legislative, regulatory and

         18  policy initiatives that can be modeled, be a model

         19  for the for-hire transportation industries

         20  worldwide.

         21                 Now I would like to address each of

         22  these bills, the actions the TLC has already been

         23  undertaking or will take and some of the questions

         24  and issues that need to be addressed.

         25                 While I touch upon some important
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          2  language and substantive technicalities, my

          3  testimony intends to address primarily the concepts

          4  or intent of each bill, in the interest of time.

          5                 Intro. 37 poses to waive

          6  administrative fees for certain types of hybrid

          7  electric vehicles. I agree with the intent of the

          8  bill, which seems to be encouraging the use of clean

          9  and fuel efficient vehicles.

         10                 Yet, I do have some concerns as the

         11  effectiveness of the proposed initiative and the

         12  potential consequences on the TLC's ability to

         13  function. The nature of medallion and vehicle

         14  ownership in the taxi industry is a very complicated

         15  one.

         16                 The bill would provide a de minimis

         17  incentive for medallion owners, as many of the

         18  vehicles are purchased directly by drivers who do

         19  not own the medallion. This bill does nothing to

         20  help them.

         21                 Also, when combined with some of the

         22  other legislation proposed by the Council, this bill

         23  would drastically reduce the revenue the TLC relies

         24  on as a fee supported agency and impair our ability

         25  to conduct business.
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          2                 There are better ways to encourage

          3  the use of clean and fuel-efficient vehicles and I

          4  welcome the opportunity to work with the Council to

          5  develop them.

          6                 Intro. 990-A proposes to set

          7  requirements for FHV bases and the ways in which

          8  they can provide wheelchair accessible service.

          9                 The bill speaks to an important goal

         10  to which we are committed, namely developing a

         11  demand-responsive transportation system accessible

         12  to all.

         13                 With the language presents some

         14  serious drafting concerns.

         15                 For example, it refers to bases

         16  licensing vehicles. Only the TLC can license

         17  vehicles. Bases can affiliate with vehicles, but

         18  that relationship is a fluid where vehicles are

         19  routinely affiliated and unaffiliated with bases.

         20                 In addition, TLC staff is already

         21  working on revising TLC rules to incorporate our FHV

         22  bases into a Citywide system for wheelchair users.

         23  Working in concert with the Mayor's Office of People

         24  With Disabilities and based on feedback from users

         25  and our licensed industries.
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          2                 Intro. 158-A proposes to drastically

          3  revise the retirement schedules for taxicabs. The

          4  intent here seems to be encourage the use of clean

          5  and fuel efficient taxicabs, with which I agree,

          6  however this bill contradicts or overlaps with some

          7  of the other bills being discussed today.

          8                 Also, Intro. 158-A virtually mandates

          9  the conversion of the taxicab fleet to vehicles that

         10  are still in the earliest stages of development,

         11  developing a track record of success as taxicabs in

         12  New York City.

         13                 In San Francisco and Vancouver, a

         14  small number of hybrid cabs, about 30 and 50

         15  respectively, have shown great promise with more

         16  than 100,000 miles of successful service.

         17                 Similarly, here in New York, a few

         18  hybrid taxicabs have logged as many as 70,000 miles.

         19  By the end of this summer, there will be nearly 300

         20  taxicabs on the streets of New York. We are

         21  committed to forging ahead and expanding the pool of

         22  clean taxicabs and monitoring their success.

         23                 This bill departs drastically from

         24  the reason approach of offering incentives and

         25  encouraging use.
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          2                 Intro. 352 proposes the development

          3  of a comprehensive plan to encourage the use of

          4  clean air vehicles.

          5                 The Commission has already begun to

          6  outline its vision for cleaner and more fuel

          7  efficient set of vehicles. The first step is to

          8  place vehicles on the road to see if they perform.

          9  And that is where we are today. Once there is

         10  confidence that these vehicles can meet

         11  expectations, we should work together on appropriate

         12  incentives.

         13                 The bill also calls for the TLC to

         14  take specific steps to encourage the use of certain

         15  types of vehicles. Sharing relevant information with

         16  our licensees is an important part of what the TLC

         17  already does. Last fall when the staff presented

         18  rules allowing the use of certain hybrid electric

         19  vehicles, we offered a detailed staff presentation

         20  that outlined some of the potential cost savings.

         21                 Council staff even included excerpts

         22  from our presentation in your Committee reports. At

         23  several of our outreach seminars for the medallion

         24  sale, we've invited current hybrid electric taxicab

         25  owners to share their experiences and show their
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          2  vehicles to potential bidders. Between 400 and 500

          3  people have attended those seminars as well as our

          4  technical workshops.

          5                 Earlier this week, I participated in

          6  two field demonstrations of hybrid electric and CNG

          7  vehicles organized by TLC staff. These events

          8  included representatives from major automakers and

          9  TLC staff, and the goal was to share the information

         10  about hybrid electric and CNG vehicles with

         11  potential medallion sale bidders.

         12                 The bill offers some other

         13  interesting ideas we would be happy to pursue

         14  further with the Council.

         15                 Intros 353 and 354 pose that

         16  identifying stickers be required for clean air and

         17  wheelchair accessible taxicabs. Both are good

         18  concepts, which I will share with my colleagues on

         19  the Commission. They can easily be implemented with

         20  rule-making.

         21                 We remain committed to sharing as

         22  much public information as possible about accessible

         23  and alternative fuel vehicles and have done a

         24  significant amount already in this regard,

         25  especially on and throughout our website.
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          2                 Intro. 355 proposes the establishment

          3  of a design competition to spur the creation of

          4  accessible hybrid taxicabs, setting standards and

          5  encouraging the private sector to meet them is

          6  exactly what the TLC has always tried to do.

          7                 We recently adopted specifications

          8  for accessible vehicles, and we already have in

          9  place specifications for hybrid electric taxicabs.

         10  Any accessible hybrid electric vehicle that meets

         11  our adopted standards would immediately approved for

         12  service. I believe these standards, particularly for

         13  accessible vehicles, set an important baseline for

         14  passenger safety and vehicle reliability.

         15                 It falls on the private sector to

         16  step up and meet those standards, and that appears

         17  to be exactly what is happening.

         18                 Once the Commission adopted its

         19  rules, we've heard from several vehicle companies

         20  that are looking to develop vehicles that will meet

         21  these specifications.

         22                 We recently learned that Chrysler is

         23  working with their approved vehicle modifiers to

         24  develop a vehicle that meets our accessible vehicle

         25  standards.
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          2                 We raised the bar only a few weeks

          3  ago, and already the private sector is working to

          4  reach it. The TLC has partnered with the design

          5  trust for public space, local non-profit on

          6  designing the taxicab project. This initiative

          7  brought together some of the best creative minds in

          8  New York City to think about the special role of

          9  yellow taxicabs, and how its design could be

         10  improved.

         11                 The result was an exhibit at the

         12  Parsons School of Design and a companion

         13  publication.

         14                 The TLC and Design Trust are now

         15  moving forward on the next step, Taxi '07, a project

         16  to celebrate the 100th Anniversary of motorized New

         17  York City taxicab. An important part of Taxi '07

         18  will be a partnership with automakers and design

         19  professionals to develop new guidelines and perhaps

         20  even prototypes that are cleaner, more fuel

         21  efficient, more accessible and more appropriate for

         22  the crowded streets of New York City.

         23                 Intro. 356 proposes the development

         24  of a dispatch-based system to provide

         25  demand-responsive transportation services to
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          2  passengers in wheelchairs. This is a concept that

          3  the TLC staff has been working on for several

          4  months, and I discussed it when I testified before

          5  the Committee several weeks ago regarding Intro.

          6  339.

          7                 I am gratified to see the Council has

          8  expressed support for this concept, and we look

          9  forward to developing, finalizing and implementing a

         10  plan with the help of the Mayor's Office of People

         11  With Disabilities, advocacy groups and our regulated

         12  industries.

         13                 We've already begun developing TLC

         14  rules that implement most of the elements of a

         15  dispatch system. This is an important priority for

         16  the Administration and we look forward to working

         17  with you to achieve it.

         18                 Intro. 357 proposes an amendment to

         19  the Administrative Code that is similarly

         20  commendable in its intent, allowing special parking

         21  for accessible for-hire vehicles.

         22                 However, as our partners at the

         23  Department of Transportation pointed out to us,

         24  for-hire vehicles actively engaged in the process of

         25  boarding and discharging passengers are not
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          2  considered to be parking but standing, which is

          3  already permitted in accordance with the Department

          4  of Transportation traffic rules.

          5                 As a result, this bill would do

          6  little to increase the ability of accessible

          7  for-hire vehicles to pick up passengers.

          8                 Intro. 361 proposes to change

          9  licensed terms for base stations, as a means to

         10  encourage the use of hybrid electric vehicles.

         11  Again, encouraging the use of clean and use of clean

         12  and fuel-efficient vehicles is a goal I agree with,

         13  and I am glad to see the Council joins us in

         14  recognizing the importance of addressing the

         15  pollution impacts of all of our licensed vehicles,

         16  not just yellow taxicabs.

         17                 But this incentive is directed at

         18  base owners who own very few for-hire vehicles. Most

         19  for-hire vehicles are actually owned by the drivers

         20  or even separate leasing companies. The TLC staff

         21  has already begun exploring the possible means to

         22  encourage reimbursements for the actual vehicle

         23  owners to offset higher vehicle costs.

         24                 There are certain incentives that

         25  could be implemented through rule-making. We would
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          2  welcome the chance to develop these ideas further

          3  with the Council's assistance.

          4                 Finally, Intro. 378 proposes to

          5  mandate the conversion of taxicabs to hybrid

          6  electric vehicles, accessible vehicles, and finally

          7  accessible hybrid electric vehicles within the next

          8  seven years.

          9                 As I've stated in the past before

         10  this Committee, I agree with the overall goal of

         11  this bill. The proposed mechanism is what troubles

         12  me.

         13                 There are some questions about how

         14  this bill interacts with others proposed today, but

         15  more importantly, the bill mandates that eventual

         16  use of vehicles that does not exist today.

         17                 There is no such thing as an

         18  accessible hybrid electric vehicle. Writing laws

         19  that require the use of vehicles that are unproven

         20  and a vehicle that does not even exist is the wrong

         21  way to make policy.

         22                 The 11 bills that I have been asked

         23  to testify on today attempt to address a range of

         24  challenges with a mixed assortment of policy and

         25  mechanisms. All of these bills express important
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          2  goals and I view them as good starting points.

          3                 The issues, as the Council is well

          4  aware, are much more complex than they seem at first

          5  glance.

          6                 First, it is important for us to

          7  focus on the big policy picture. For example, should

          8  our efforts be limited to encouraging the use of

          9  hybrid electric cabs, as these bills seem to do?

         10                 Should we look towards clean and fuel

         11  efficient technologies in general? Dozens of new

         12  vehicles being released this year and over the next

         13  several years meet emissions and fuel efficiency

         14  standards as good or better than hybrids.

         15                 These standards are set by the

         16  California Air Resources Board, have been adopted by

         17  New York State, many of the vehicles are gasoline

         18  powered but they use technologies to minimize

         19  negative impacts.

         20                 Shouldn't the use of these vehicles

         21  be encouraged as well? While hybrid electric

         22  technology represents an exciting option, the

         23  reality is that it stems from a technology first

         24  developed at the beginning of the 20th century.

         25                 The CEO of Nissan motors has argued
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          2  that hybrid engines are low technology solutions

          3  that impedes the growth of more promising

          4  technology.

          5                 The federal definition, and even the

          6  official New York City definition of alternative

          7  fuel does not include hybrid electrics.

          8                 Other technologies available today

          9  are on the horizon that may offer more benefits in

         10  terms of cleanliness and dependence on gasoline.

         11                 When TLC staff attended the

         12  Alternative Fuel Vehicles Institutes, Clean Cities

         13  Congress and Expo this past May, none of the

         14  vehicles on display were hybrids. The talk of the

         15  conference were alternative fuels, like natural gas,

         16  electricity, ethanol and biodiesel.

         17                 Here in New York City, a company has

         18  even requested permission for a pilot program to

         19  test a lithium battery-powered and zero emissions

         20  vehicle as a taxicab. While hybrid electric vehicles

         21  are promising in a practical next step, we should

         22  not move too aggressively to wed ourselves long term

         23  to technology which is rapidly changing.

         24                 In my view, a broader plan should

         25  include encouraging and fostering the development of
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          2  all technologies that lead to cleaner and more fuel

          3  efficient vehicles.

          4                 On the issue of vehicle incentives

          5  for alterative fuel vehicles, we must also look at

          6  the big policy picture. Is providing an incentive to

          7  FHV owner the best way to encourage the use of clean

          8  and fuel-efficient vehicles for hire?

          9                 The reality of today's FHV industry

         10  is that in most cases the base owner does not own

         11  any of the vehicles that are affiliated with them.

         12                 Should bases really be geared towards

         13  them? Should benefits really be geared towards them?

         14  Should we instead focus efforts on providing

         15  incentives for vehicle owners who are more often

         16  than not the drivers?

         17                 Likewise, with regard to accessible

         18  service, should a demand-responsive system for

         19  wheelchair users be limited to the use of two-way

         20  radios, as Intro. 356 calls for? With technology

         21  available today, maybe we should consider other

         22  means of communications and dispatch, such as text

         23  messaging or wireless e-mail.

         24                 Intro. 356 mandates the use of 3-1-1

         25  for wheelchair users to obtain service, which
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          2  certainly seems like a logical choice, but Intro.

          3  356 would seem to prohibit exploration or use of

          4  alternatives or supplements like web-based

          5  reservation systems.

          6                 We would consider these and all other

          7  viable options as well. We should consider these and

          8  all other viable options as well. We should consider

          9  how this system meshes with the long-term goal of a

         10  fully accessible and clean fleet.

         11                 Together, the Administration and

         12  Council have accomplished a great deal over the past

         13  few months to improve the City's for-hire

         14  transportation system. We look forward to working

         15  with members of the Council to build upon progress

         16  we have made over the past few years, as well as the

         17  recent momentum we have made in providing for

         18  cleaner and more accessible taxicabs for hire

         19  vehicles.

         20                 Thank you for your patience, and we

         21  would be happy to answer any questions you may have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Deputy

         23  Commissioner, for that very thoughtful testimony.

         24                 I want to note that we've been joined

         25  by Council Members Michael McMahon from Staten
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          2  Island, Council Member Miguel Martinez from

          3  Manhattan, and Council Member Diana Reyna from

          4  Brooklyn and Queens, Brooklyn and Queens.

          5                 Once again, I want to thank the TLC

          6  for their thoughtful testimony. It's I guess

          7  comforting to some measure that all of these vast

          8  worldwide newest technology issues have been under

          9  contemplation at the TLC.

         10                 The problem we have is that not that

         11  much has changed for many years along these two

         12  fronts. We made some progress with the hybrid

         13  electric and the cleaner vehicles, because we passed

         14  a law one and three years ago which the TLC was very

         15  slow in coming into compliance with, because they

         16  did not designate a vehicle, so we had to pass a

         17  special bill last year, so that that ultimately

         18  brought the TLC up to speed.

         19                 And that's just an example. You know,

         20  while the TLC contemplates these vast issues, very

         21  little progress is being done. And even with your

         22  testimony today, it's hard to know exactly which

         23  bills the Administration is for and which bills the

         24  Administration is against.

         25                 You could interpret that you're in
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          2  favor of all of our bills, and you could also

          3  interpret that you're in favor of none of them. So,

          4  it would be helpful for us to know exactly where the

          5  Administration stands on these bills.

          6                 And, you know, I'm going to turn it

          7  over to my colleagues who have questions, and I'll

          8  kind of clean up at the end with any questions that

          9  haven't been asked. But statements such as, and this

         10  is your response to Intro. 378, to say that there is

         11  no such thing as an accessible hybrid electric

         12  vehicle, that, in our opinion, is a bit of an

         13  extreme statement, because while you can always

         14  narrowly define things the way you like, the fact is

         15  that there are accessible clean-air vehicles, so you

         16  might not want to say hybrid electric, but

         17  nonetheless the issue is something that is clean

         18  air.

         19                 In the absence of our bills, people

         20  in New York City will continue to be served largely

         21  with only restrictive, inaccessible, gas-guzzling

         22  sedans. And so we're trying to get through this

         23  package of bills to get away from just having for

         24  the most part restrictive, inaccessible,

         25  gas-guzzling sedans.
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          2                 I hope that we will work together

          3  closely with the Administration on moving forward

          4  with this package of bills, and to the extent where

          5  something could be more broadly defined as opposed

          6  to taking a very narrow focus or definition of

          7  different terms, I think at that point that will be

          8  helpful so that we can continue to work together to

          9  advance. It's not a matter of advancing these bills

         10  really, it's a matter of advancing these issues, the

         11  issues of having a more environmentally friendly

         12  taxicab fleet, and a taxicab fleet that is usable by

         13  more and more New Yorkers.

         14                 We have questions from Council Member

         15  Gennaro.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman.

         18                 Mr. Salkin, right? Okay, I just

         19  wanted to get the name right. I was thinking of you

         20  as Mr. Daus, you know, you played the role so well

         21  up there.

         22                 With regard to Intro. 352 where

         23  myself and my co-sponsors indicate the need, we

         24  believe to create a plan. You indicated in your

         25  statement that you didn't believe a plan was
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          2  necessary because the TLC is already doing things

          3  like this. And it seems that the way we structured

          4  the bill was kind of open-ended. I notice that with

          5  some other bills you indicated that the TLC took

          6  issue with certain bills because we stipulate

          7  exactly what we want you to do in those bills, and

          8  perhaps there's a better way to do it.

          9                 This bill was kind of the other way.

         10  We didn't draw a lot of guidelines on, you know,

         11  what we actually wanted you to do. We wanted you to

         12  use your best creative efforts, incentives and

         13  create a plan that would be put out there. And, so,

         14  this bill is merely giving you an opportunity in our

         15  view to do what it is you say you want to do, but to

         16  codify it and to put it forward. And, so, it's

         17  difficult for me to see how you could be against the

         18  opportunity to sort of move forward in like a very

         19  dramatic way what it is you say the TLC wants to do.

         20                 So, if you would respond as to why

         21  you believe this bill is unnecessary, and give us

         22  some rationale for that, we would appreciate that.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         24  think your interpretation of our dislike of the bill

         25  is not exactly what we meant to outline.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: And

          4  we can clarify.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Hence the

          6  question.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: The

          8  Commission is committed to cleaner vehicles, and I

          9  think this bill, more than any of the others, as you

         10  pointed out, kind of asks the Commission to come up

         11  with a plan. And I think what we've done is we're

         12  really trying to develop our vision, and I say that

         13  in the testimony, we're formulating our vision. And

         14  the vision that we want to focus on are appropriate

         15  cars that are clean. We think some of the concerns

         16  with the bill are some of the specifics about

         17  limiting it to not all clean cars but a specific

         18  type of technology, setting some goals, and that we

         19  feel we could talk about how to get there and what

         20  the vision might be.

         21                 We like this bill. We very much would

         22  like to work with Council on formulating how that

         23  vision can look, and understanding a way that we can

         24  always work on and meet that vision.

         25                 One of the things we've been doing,
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          2  and Peter Schenkman plays a major role in that, is

          3  every few months we get updates at the Commission

          4  meetings explaining the progress and where we are

          5  with the hybrid technology and other technologies of

          6  the car. And that's something we think we have to do

          7  and we understand that's really important that the

          8  Commission understands, the state of the vehicle,

          9  where the vehicles are, the latest technologies and

         10  the concerns. And I think now there is more going on

         11  in the automotive industry than it seems like in a

         12  long time, and it's important for us to be at the

         13  appropriate place. And to have that vision in place

         14  is important, and I think we agree with that concept

         15  and we would like to work with the Council on

         16  formulating exactly how that vision gets

         17  interpreted.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And then once

         19  that vision is crystalized, do I take it that you,

         20  or the TLC would not have opposition to creating a

         21  bill that does that?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         23  think the Commission as a body has a responsibility

         24  and can do that if the Council feels that

         25  legislation is an appropriate action, to do that, I
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          2  think we could discuss how that legislation would

          3  look. But, again, I think the Commission has already

          4  started to do that and is beginning to lay out a

          5  vision and has begun to understand things, and I

          6  think they're on their way to having that in place.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right. Well,

          8  this bill I think really is kind of an attempt to

          9  kind of catalyze that process. I mean, this is what

         10  we're trying to do here.

         11                 So, if we, the Council, and you the

         12  TLC, can come to an agreement on what that vision

         13  is, I think we should do that. You know, we could

         14  make it some kind of living, breathing bill that has

         15  the ability to change and mutate as necessary when

         16  technologies come down the line. And I think we've

         17  done that with other kinds of bills and we can do it

         18  here.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         20  Right, and how that gets played out, I think is

         21  important to understand the role of the Council and

         22  the role of the Commission, understanding broad

         23  concepts and the ability of the Commission to be a

         24  little bit more reactive and I think we could work

         25  very well together.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Well, great.

          3  I look forward to the opportunity to working with

          4  the Chairman and TLC to make this bill the reality,

          5  and in the interest of time, Mr. Chairman, I know

          6  there are many questions and many witnesses, I'll

          7  end my questioning here, and thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         10  Member Gennaro.

         11                 Council Member Martinez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair.

         14                 Deputy Commissioner, I just want to

         15  focus on several bills. You made some comments and I

         16  want to apologize for my tardiness, I was at the

         17  Chamber with the Education Committee hearing, but I

         18  got to hear the end of your testimony and Intro.

         19  357, which speaks in terms of a special parking for

         20  accessible for-hire vehicles, I thought I heard you

         21  saying that currently that's allowed for vehicles to

         22  station while they're dropping off and picking up;

         23  is that true?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: My

         25  understanding is that DOT regulations that govern
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          2  standing and not standing allow that if a vehicle

          3  that is a for-hire vehicle, is actively engaged in

          4  the process of loading on, loading the passengers,

          5  then they are -- what's the language, it's not

          6  standing, but -- they're standing but they're not

          7  parked, so they're not subject to the regulation

          8  that's posted, so you can do your business.

          9                 I think the goal of the bill, if I'm

         10  not mistaken, is to allow vehicles that are

         11  unloading and loading accessible passengers,

         12  especially I would imagine in more dense parts of

         13  the City, utilize spaces where they typically

         14  couldn't stand, and I think what DOT is saying is,

         15  as long as they're loading and unloading, they can

         16  stand. They can't sit there and wait, but as long as

         17  they're in the process of loading and unloading they

         18  are behaving legally and should not be subject to

         19  ticketing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And in terms

         21  of Intro. 90-A, when you state that, just for the

         22  Committee's benefit, my benefit, when you say that

         23  the bill speaks of the for-hire base in terms of

         24  having the accessible vehicle, the issue is that

         25  most, basically, bases don't own vehicles, that this
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          2  will mostly have an impact on the fleet operation,

          3  correct?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  That's correct. There are just over 500 bases

          6  currently in operation that are for-hire

          7  community-based services, and depending what

          8  neighborhood you live in, that tend to perform

          9  differently. Many people are here to testify today

         10  that are fleet-operators. I did not see many people

         11  here today that are the notion of affiliation. And I

         12  know in your district they function on the

         13  affiliation relationship.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That's why I

         15  asked the question, because I've gotten letters from

         16  the fleet operations which are the impact, but now

         17  when I am understanding clear -- so, in other words,

         18  for the bill to cover it for-hire vehicles, in terms

         19  of making available accessible for-hire vehicles,

         20  the language would have to be that TLC -- in other

         21  words, TLC would have to put out certain licenses

         22  for vehicles to be affiliated to a base that must be

         23  accessible.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         25  guess that's one way of approaching it.
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          2                 I think if I'm understanding the bill

          3  correctly, the bill is to have more cleaner vehicles

          4  in the livery industry.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I'm focusing

          6  on the accessible vehicles.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  Accessible.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  Sorry.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: In other

         13  words, the for-hire bases currently contract?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         15  They can either purchase vehicles, they can contract

         16  with someone who is capable of providing service.

         17                 So, the goal here should be how do

         18  you get the vehicles in the for-hire industry and

         19  livery industry out on the road, and focusing on the

         20  base, we think we'll have a limited impact because

         21  bases themselves don't -- we're seeing more and

         22  more, are not the owners of the vehicle.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Isn't that

         24  what we're doing now? We're focusing on the bases?

         25                 Correct me if I'm wrong. Isn't TLC
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          2  requiring the bases to have a contract with a

          3  provider to provide this services?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: Or

          5  own a vehicle, that's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But you're

          7  requiring the base to do it now?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So why can't

         11  we require the base to have the vehicle available,

         12  rather than having a contract? For each base to have

         13  let's say two vehicles that are accessible.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         15  Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And you

         17  know, we heard testimony at the last hearing where

         18  we played with some numbers, we got numbers from

         19  Access-A-Ride, where they told us the amount of

         20  rides, trips that they made to provide these

         21  services. So, the rationale would be that if each

         22  base, even if it's stationed there, you know, at one

         23  point you're going to get two calls, you're going to

         24  get three calls, you're meeting a mandate; would

         25  that make sense?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          3  Again, we agree with the concept that every base

          4  should have the capability providing the appropriate

          5  level of service, and the current way we've been

          6  thinking about it is equivalent service. We should

          7  take steps to ensure that the bases can do that.

          8                 How exactly you get there I think

          9  requires understanding how the industry works, how a

         10  vehicle actually gets out onto the street, and how a

         11  base is related to that, those vehicles. I think

         12  it's a little bit more complex than a simple

         13  conversation today, but I think it's something that

         14  I would agree with you, conceptually there is a

         15  solution and we should certainly work together to

         16  formulate how that solution can look, and what would

         17  be appropriate for the industry, not just in

         18  different parts of the City but   for the entire

         19  City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And then,

         21  finally, on 361, that has to do with the hybrid, I

         22  don't know if you are -- are you sharing the same

         23  concern for the for-hire industry, the

         24  manufacturers? Because you have certain rules in

         25  terms of the age of the vehicle; am I right?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: We

          3  have rules for the age of the yellow taxi fleet, but

          4  there are not rules for the age of any other

          5  vehicles that the TLC regulates.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Which means

          7  that if this bill is implemented, obviously we're

          8  talking about modern vehicles, which will have to

          9  be, the bases will have to be in compliance similar

         10  to the yellow industry; is that right? Would that be

         11  an impact in your assessment?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: If

         13  you're asking me, requiring bases to only affiliate

         14  with or own new cars, would that be the impact? Is

         15  that what you're asking me?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: In other

         17  words, if this becomes law, 361, requiring in the

         18  for-hire industry to have the hybrid, these are

         19  fairly modern vehicles, the rules that apply in the

         20  yellow taxi industry where you have -- five years

         21  you said?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: For

         23  the most part.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: For the most

         25  part.
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          2                 That will be the same rule then

          3  applied to the for-hire industry.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: My

          5  understanding of this bill and what it's trying to

          6  get at doesn't necessarily address the age of the

          7  vehicles. This addresses the type of emissions that

          8  a vehicle has.

          9                 But by default at this time, I think

         10  what you're getting at is, since the vehicles have

         11  to be new, there would be potentially a lot of new

         12  vehicles being required in the for-hire market.

         13                 I think that could be potentially an

         14  initial reaction. We've had discussions in the

         15  office about how much does a used Prius go for, and

         16  my understanding is it actually goes for the same

         17  price as a new one. So, the idea of how exactly if

         18  this bill was passed a base would comply, and what

         19  type of vehicles they would have, I think remains to

         20  be seen. But I think you're getting at a possible

         21  conclusion which would be there would be some newer

         22  vehicles out there.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Mm-hmm. And

         24  finally, Mr. Chair, and I'll be done. Intro. 352, in

         25  terms of -- well, that one is pretty much clear.
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          2                 Mr. Chair, you know, as we move

          3  forward in these bills, and obviously we're

          4  addressing the issue on both industry that provide

          5  the largest means of transportation, other than our

          6  public transportation, which is the yellow taxi and

          7  the livery and fleet operations, there are some

          8  distinct differences between both industry, however.

          9  And one of the issues that I raise, some of the

         10  rules that we have for the yellow cab industry, in

         11  terms of the age of the vehicles in operation as to

         12  oppose the livery industry where they are much older

         13  vehicles, and even though the goal for us as a

         14  legislative body, and a conscience body in terms of

         15  our environment, we also need to take under

         16  consideration some of the differences that exist

         17  between both industries. If it applies to one

         18  industry, it doesn't necessarily mean that it

         19  automatically applies to the other. Especially when

         20  it comes to the issue of the hybrid, and how do we,

         21  in an industry where the market value of the

         22  vehicle, because they're not medallion, it's much,

         23  much less than the yellow cab, we also need to have

         24  a discussion around that.

         25                 I just want to thank you for that,
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          2  Mr. Chair. And as we move along, I would definitely

          3  like to have more conversations around that specific

          4  issue.

          5                 Thank you, Deputy Commissioner.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          7  Member Martinez.

          8                 Council Member Reyna and then Council

          9  Member Koppell.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 Deputy Commissioner, I just wanted to

         13  pick up where Miguel had, Council Member Martinez

         14  had just left off.

         15                 Just a couple of months ago, I

         16  contacted Chairman Daus to find out if rumors that

         17  had been calling my attention in my district

         18  concerning for-hire vehicles, independent drivers

         19  concern that they apparently were not going to be

         20  insured if they didn't get a more recent model year

         21  vehicle. And the pressures on the industry, because

         22  what you're talking about is that if it's not a 2000

         23  and beyond vehicle, you're basically out of

         24  business. So that the intentions of these bills, I'm

         25  asking you, would you foresee the same pressures
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          2  occurring, just by default alone, because already

          3  the insurance companies are picking up on this

          4  mandate of making sure that cars are going to be

          5  more, fairly new, similar to what is expected of the

          6  yellow taxicab industry?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: Let

          8  me try to gather exactly what you're asking. I think

          9  I understand your point, and I agree that the

         10  insurance companies clearly are giving different

         11  insurance rates for the vehicle, and the newer

         12  vehicles seem to get better insurance rates.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: They won't even

         14  insure.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: And

         16  it sounds like some insurance companies are not

         17  insuring vehicles.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: There's only

         19  one company that dictates.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  There are others, but there is one prominent player,

         22  that's correct. So, there's the issue of insurance

         23  and how do you insure vehicles. So, I guess my

         24  question is, as far as insurance and it relates to

         25  these bills, what exactly are you thinking?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm not too

          3  sure if you were for or against the bills calling

          4  for the for-hire vehicle industry or of the base

          5  stations, because clearly you made sure to look at

          6  the numbers as far as what is a base station and how

          7  much can we require them to offer the City of New

          8  York? At the end of the day the predominantly

          9  for-hire vehicle is independent drivers that are

         10  owners to the base station, correct?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: The

         12  predominant way that the model works right now is

         13  that there will be a person that owns a vehicle, and

         14  then there will be one or more people that drive the

         15  vehicle. The vehicle itself is affiliated with a

         16  base. That's predominantly how the operations work.

         17  To get service you call the base, and the base would

         18  dispatch that vehicle to pick you up. And I think

         19  what you're getting at is what will the impact of

         20  these bills have on that individual who owns that

         21  vehicle? Sometimes it is the driver, and sometimes

         22  it is not, and will that impact our ability to put

         23  the vehicles on the road. And I think what Council

         24  Member Martinez was getting at and I think maybe

         25  where you're going is, there's a balance here, and
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          2  it's not the medallion industry. There is not a

          3  significant amount of value placed in the right to

          4  just do dispatch service in the City so that these

          5  owners have to balance how new their vehicle is,

          6  versus how much their insurance is. Some people can

          7  purchase brand new vehicles and have lower

          8  insurance, and other people can purchase older

          9  vehicles and hopefully get very expensive insurance,

         10  and is that the right model that we want to have,

         11  and I think what you're suggesting is that we think

         12  carefully about how to implement this and achieve

         13  the goals. And recognizing what Council Member

         14  Martinez said is that the industries are very

         15  different, and exactly how do we achieve a goal, it

         16  probably has to be a little bit more delicately

         17  thought out, which I think we'd like to do and

         18  figure out, because I think ultimately the best case

         19  scenario is clean cars in all neighborhoods, because

         20  it's really in all neighborhoods where air can

         21  sometimes be a problem, and asthma and stuff.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And I

         23  appreciate that thoughtful comment, in wrapping that

         24  answer up, because at the end of the day, there are

         25  distinct industries and I don't think the public
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          2  understands the differences. And I know that from

          3  experience, you know, my father is a for-hire

          4  vehicle driver, and the notion that he goes through

          5  these highs and lows where he's seeking insurance,

          6  can't get access to it, spends $8,000 a year on

          7  insurance alone, and all the expenses added on top

          8  of that, just to be able to operate.

          9                 They're not driving on an equity

         10  incentive, similar to what the taxicab industry does

         11  have access to, which are the medallion. And even in

         12  the medallion industry, you don't have -- the number

         13  of yellow cabs out there running on a medallion does

         14  not equate to the number of owners that there are,

         15  and so at the end of the day, who is going to be

         16  most affected by this demand, as far as all these

         17  bills before us.

         18                 And I'm just as much in favor of

         19  clean air and clean fuel as the next person, but at

         20  the end of the day, putting some thought behind what

         21  we're doing to legislate a lot of these things is

         22  very important, as well, and balancing the needs of

         23  everyone.

         24                 I wanted to just understand how you

         25  are going to be able to come back to the table and
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          2  support such requirements? And I value your lengthy

          3  testimony, but at the end of the day, I'm trying to

          4  figure out if you're in support and you just need

          5  further clarification as to how to reach these

          6  goals?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  Well, let me reiterate, and it goes to Councilman

          9  Gennaro's original question about having a plan for

         10  clean vehicles and new technologies they make for

         11  clean vehicles. I think it's very important that we

         12  all understand exactly what's out there, where the

         13  technologies go and how to get there, in terms of

         14  clean vehicles. And I think there's a lot of

         15  different ways to approach the clean car scenario in

         16  the livery industry. Limiting the conversation to

         17  hybrids is certainly one way to approach it, but

         18  expanding it to meet the definitions of California

         19  Emissions Board is another way to discuss it.

         20                 And what I'm saying is I think it's

         21  an appropriate goal, I think it's an achievable goal

         22  to get more vehicles in the livery industry that are

         23  cleaner, but I think we need to think about exactly

         24  how we do that.

         25                 So, what I'd like to see is, I think
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          2  is understanding what Council would think is

          3  appropriate goals, as well as what we think would be

          4  appropriate goals on the Commission side, that mimic

          5  the economics of the industry and phasing that in as

          6  appropriate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And

          8  incentivising the industry as well.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  Absolutely. It's one of those things, the sooner it

         11  happens, the better it is, we all are. And the key

         12  is to do it in a balance that you don't bankrupt or

         13  drive away people from the industry all together, or

         14  drive them underground so they're unlicensed, which

         15  is not what we want for the riding public.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And I

         17  appreciate that highlight.

         18                 I wanted to just understand, would

         19  you be able to bring the insurance industry to the

         20  table to start discussing perhaps incentives to

         21  provide the seamless transition of incentivising so

         22  that it's not just you bringing to the table

         23  incentives, but the other side of the business which

         24  is the insurance companies? Without the insurance,

         25  these people can't operate.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          3  think the insurance issue is something that the

          4  Commission is well aware. There's been hearings in

          5  the past, and trying to figure out the right way to

          6  approach that is important.

          7                 I think you raise some interesting

          8  questions, is why do we hear about insurance on one

          9  part of the industry and not the other? So, perhaps

         10  there's ways for us to glean some lessons learned

         11  from the yellow industry that could be brought upon

         12  the for-hire industry to help control insurance or

         13  at least know what we're getting into so that the

         14  insurance rates are under control.

         15                 But as far as working with the State

         16  Insurance Department, we do try to do that. We try

         17  to keep them abreast of what's going on. We do not

         18  regulate the insurance companies. I assume that all

         19  insurance companies practice sound insurance

         20  practices, and they give rates based on the risk

         21  they see in front of them.

         22                 Perhaps there's things that we can do

         23  to help alleviate some of their concerns and risk.

         24  Obviously they like newer cars. But that's something

         25  that the industry was amenable to and maybe the
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          2  Commission would follow, is mandating that or maybe

          3  not.

          4                 I think it's a complex issue as you

          5  know, and I can't say that I have the solution for

          6  it today. But I can say that it's something that

          7  we've looked a lot at and I think working together

          8  we can certainly formulate strategies to get to

          9  where we want to get to with cleaner vehicles that

         10  are affordable for the drivers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I appreciate

         12  that. And I don't want to get in trouble with my

         13  father coming out of here telling me that I was

         14  responsible for forcing him to get a new car, but at

         15  the end of the day there has to be some commensurate

         16  savings on behalf of the drivers and owners, on the

         17  whole industry, to be able to say that we're going

         18  to mandate things, and at the end of the day,

         19  they're not seeing the benefits to any of this.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         22  Member Reyna. And questions from Council Member

         23  Koppell.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, thank

         25  you. I'll try and be brief. Let me just say that
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          2  while it is helpful to see problems and defects in

          3  the bills, and it's welcome that you share the

          4  objectives. I would have maybe preferred to see how

          5  we think the bills are better, not what's wrong with

          6  them, but kind of what we could do to make them

          7  work.

          8                 And a couple of your comments trouble

          9  me some, and I want a quote from page four, just two

         10  things I'm going to bring up. You say in 2000 the

         11  TLC passed rules requiring the for-hire vehicle

         12  bases to provide service on an equivalent basis to

         13  passengers who use wheelchairs. Today every current

         14  license base has the ability to provide wheelchair

         15  accessible service.

         16                 Are you telling us that that is now

         17  the fact, that every base is able to provide

         18  wheelchair accessible service, so if I call up and

         19  I'm confined to a wheelchair, I call up any base in

         20  the City, they will provide me with an accessible

         21  car; is that what you're saying? So we don't need to

         22  do any legislation on that?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: The

         24  testimony is correct that every license base has the

         25  capability of providing accessible service. What I
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          2  later say in the testimony is that we feel that the

          3  desired outcome or the ridership demand or the

          4  demand for the service that is desired is not being

          5  met, and we need to rethink how this service is

          6  being provided.

          7                 So, what I'm suggesting is what the

          8  TLC put in place in 2000 is being met to a certain

          9  extent, but what is demanded by the riders of people

         10  who use wheelchairs is not being met. And we need to

         11  be more creative and think through what we can do

         12  with the resources that are available to us today

         13  and the vehicles that are available to provide those

         14  services.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And you don't

         16  think that the way we did it in the bill we had is

         17  adequate, right?

         18                 So, you should be providing us with

         19  either a suggestion for better legislation or maybe

         20  putting a regulation into place. Since you say

         21  that's what you want to happen.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Well, we have already begun working on, working on

         24  changing our rules to better meet to change the way

         25  that service is being provided that we think would
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          2  be better in terms of serving the community.

          3                 But I think one of your statements

          4  that you said at the beginning of the hearing, which

          5  is kind of this is a hearing to get conversation and

          6  a way for us to discuss ideas, is something I kind

          7  of wish we knew as we were preparing the testimony.

          8  Because I think all through the testimony we talk

          9  about the merits of the proposals, or the merits of

         10  the policies, and we absolutely agree that being

         11  able to provide accessible service, as demanded

         12  throughout the City, is an important goal, we do

         13  need to have further conversation. I think that's

         14  something you're also looking for, and I think this

         15  is something the Administration is committed to

         16  pulling together and we look forward to flushing out

         17  the details of that quickly and implementing it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But you said

         19  the bill should focus on the drivers, not on the

         20  base station. But the bill says that the for-hire

         21  vehicle base station, they should have these cars

         22  available, right? Are you opposed to that?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         24  You're saying am I opposed to requiring the bases

         25  have the ability to dispatch accessible service?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          4  am not opposed to the ability of bases dispatching

          5  available service. I think what we wanted to work

          6  out with the Council was exactly the way that the

          7  bill triggers or influences the regulated industries

          8  so that the end result is something that mimics or

          9  at least compliments the way that service is getting

         10  put on the road right now. And I think this bill,

         11  while offering some interesting concepts and good

         12  ideas, and framework for discussion, I don't think

         13  it's something that we could support in its current

         14  language. I think the concepts are there and I

         15  certainly feel comfortable or confident that we

         16  could figure out a way to achieve your point, which

         17  is ensuring every case has the capability of

         18  providing accessible service to the folks that need

         19  it, when they need it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, let me

         21  read you one of the key requirements of the bill. It

         22  says, any owner of any base station -- I'm sorry.

         23  Accessible service at base stations with ten or more

         24  vehicles.

         25                 An owner of any base station shall
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          2  license and leave one accessible for-hire vehicle

          3  available to be dispatched on demand at such

          4  location for every ten for-hire vehicles licensed,

          5  owned or otherwise controlled by such owner at such

          6  station.

          7                 So, is that -- it seems pretty clear,

          8  whether the base station owns the car or just

          9  arranges with an owner to have the car available,

         10  this bill would require if you have ten, you have to

         11  have one that's accessible; is that realistic or not

         12  realistic?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: Are

         14  you asking for the first ten, or are you saying for

         15  every ten that you have?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, every

         17  ten.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: Is

         19  that realistic?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         22  think that's something we need to discuss and I

         23  think it's two sided, and the answer is, the idea

         24  being, you know, just off the top of my head, I

         25  think there's about 25,000 livery vehicles, so the
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          2  requirement of one in ten would be 2,500 livery

          3  vehicles operating in New York City now on a vehicle

          4  that, you know, we have 27 operating in the taxicab

          5  industry, and we're not really sure if those are the

          6  right vehicle. So, to take an industry that uses, as

          7  Council Member Martinez just pointed out, used

          8  vehicles, to be put on the road, so potentially what

          9  we're looking at is 2,500 used accessible vehicles

         10  in putting on the road. I'm not sure there's 2,500

         11  accessible vehicles that meet the TLC standards

         12  available right now. So, I'm not sure the way the

         13  bill is currently written it's something that can be

         14  achieved.

         15                 I think that there is a way to

         16  achieve the goal, what you're getting at, and I

         17  think there is potentially other ways, and we would

         18  be interested in discussing and further looking at

         19  those.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: All right.

         21  Well, here, one of the things you could say is,

         22  well, one in ten is too many or there should be some

         23  co-licensing arrangement so that one base station

         24  could perhaps share with another base station, but

         25  the idea is that each base station would have
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          2  available relatively readily a certain number of

          3  accessible vehicles, which your regulation already

          4  requires. What we're trying to do is make your

          5  regulation real, because you admit, your regulation

          6  isn't working.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  That's correct. I agree with the conceptions you're

          9  outlining.

         10                 Again, in the testimony we were asked

         11  to share thoughts on 11 different bills.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: And

         14  what we didn't want to get into is the specifics.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: All right.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         17  agree with you, this is a very important piece of

         18  legislation that could dramatically change the way

         19  the for-hire service and the accessible community

         20  interact around New York City and I think it's

         21  something that deserves a lot more attention and

         22  we're willing to work with the Council on finding a

         23  way to do that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I mean, there

         25  are a lot of people here to talk, so I want to just
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          2  stop, even though I have other questions, but I'm

          3  going to stop because I want to hear from the

          4  public. So, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          6  Member Koppell. We've been joined by Council members

          7  Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn and Council Member David

          8  Yassky also from Brooklyn.

          9                 Council Member McMahon had questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 Deputy Commissioner, would you just

         13  help us clarify the TLC's position on a couple of

         14  things. Are you committing to implementing Intro.

         15  353, which is the identification of clean air taxis,

         16  Intro. 354 which is displaying of the International

         17  Wheelchair insignia, and 356, which is essential

         18  accessibility dispatch; are you committing to

         19  implementing those to some kind of rule-making or

         20  administrative action? It sounded like you were, but

         21  I wasn't --

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Well, again, the Commission has the ability to

         24  approve stickers that can go on vehicles or not go

         25  on vehicles, they can also regulate or mandate that
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          2  through rule-making, and in discussions and

          3  preparation for the testimony, the Chair, as I

          4  indicated in the testimony, is going to bring that

          5  up with the Commission. I believe the next

          6  Commission meeting is tomorrow and his plan is to

          7  reflect on some of the conversations that took place

          8  here and get a feeling from the Commission on how

          9  they feel.

         10                 I think the idea of communicating

         11  with the public is a very important role of the

         12  regulator to ensure that people know what they're

         13  getting into and how the vehicle that they're about

         14  to step into and how it should work, and I think

         15  this sticker is one way to do that, and the

         16  Commission certainly has stickers and uses stickers

         17  as a way to communicate with the public.

         18                 So, I think what the Chair's

         19  testimony is aimed at doing is committing to bring

         20  it up with the Commission as soon as tomorrow.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. And at

         22  some point you'll let us know if it can be done that

         23  way or not, and then it may have to be done

         24  legislatively.

         25                 And how about the central
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          2  accessibility dispatch?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          4  think the Chair and the Administration have made it

          5  clear that having the ability to better efficiently

          6  use the vehicles that are accessible is critical.

          7                 The idea that there is a demand out

          8  there I think everybody recognizes, and the ability

          9  to meet that demand should be the most efficient way

         10  possible.

         11                 Clearly, focusing on a yellow only

         12  system deals with standing on the street corner and

         13  hailing vehicles. If you did it that way, it would

         14  have to rely on a lot of standing on the street

         15  corner waiting for a vehicle to come by, but

         16  utilizing the dispatch concept means that we can

         17  utilize vehicles that are already on the road,

         18  hopefully within close proximity to where the

         19  demanded service is, and a person who needs that

         20  ride can get that ride rather quickly.

         21                 It's a matter of efficiency, and we

         22  are committed to figuring out the right way to do

         23  that, and getting in place rules that would ensure

         24  that there are the right number of vehicles on the

         25  road capable of providing the service as demanded.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, you're

          3  committing to following up on that as well, and that

          4  can be done administratively. It does not have to be

          5  done legislatively.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: It

          7  depends how it's done, but I think there's a lot of

          8  things that can be done administratively, that's

          9  correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, so, but

         11  you are committed to pursue that and to keep contact

         12  with the Council to let us know how that's

         13  proceeding?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         15  Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

         17                 Let me just say this, that for us

         18  here on this Committee, I'm sure, I don't want to

         19  speak for everyone here, but some of the issues

         20  presented here are difficult for us because those

         21  who rightfully want to have physical access to

         22  livery service and cabs are here today to advocate

         23  the case of getting more taxis on the road that do

         24  that.

         25                 The people in the industry are
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          2  saying, well, that's a laudable goal, we can't

          3  afford to do it, on certain basic business

          4  conditions, it would ruin us, the insurance is too

          5  high, so on and so forth.

          6                 The problem is that we have no

          7  numbers for data or, you know, empirical data that

          8  can help us say that it is affordable to do it, or

          9  it is not affordable to do it.

         10                 So, I'm asking you to help us to

         11  collect that data, but I'm also saying to the people

         12  in this room, if you're for these initiatives, you

         13  have to help provide us with numbers that show that

         14  it's doable, and if you're opposed to it, or if you

         15  want to say we can't afford it, it will put us out

         16  of business, at the next hearing or meeting somebody

         17  better give us some numbers to look at so that we

         18  can justify those claims as well and try to reach an

         19  accommodation that achieves the goals of those who

         20  want to make the delivery service accessible, and

         21  that's right, and we want to do that, at the same

         22  time do it in a way that allows businesses to

         23  continue to flourish in the City of New York.

         24                 So, any way you can help us, I

         25  appreciate it, and I say that to every one in this
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          2  room, whatever your position is, just saying what's

          3  right and what's wrong is not enough. Someone has to

          4  give us the hard facts. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          6  Member McMahon.

          7                 All right, I just wanted to -- I'm

          8  sorry, we've been joined by Council Member David

          9  Yassky, who has some opening comments.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         11  much. I will be very brief. I know you've got a lot

         12  of people who come here to testify, and I have

         13  nothing but respect for Deputy Commissioner Salkin

         14  and the Department.

         15                 I have to say, I just think that your

         16  statement, I want to focus here on Intro. 158-A,

         17  that is the bill that would, I believe really would

         18  effectively force the taxis that are not accessible

         19  to go gas, electric, hybrid or some other fuel

         20  efficient.

         21                 By the way, in your testimony I

         22  gather you to say there are other ways, maybe other

         23  things better than hybrid. Just to be clear, I hope

         24  you understand, this bill doesn't say hybrid, it

         25  sets fuel efficiency standards. It appears to me
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          2  hybrids are the things on the market now, they have

          3  the best chance of achieving that, but if there's

          4  other technology that can get that, that's terrific.

          5  That's fine. The standard here is clean fuel to

          6  reduce pollution, reduce the burden on our air

          7  quality.

          8                 And, you know, you say in your

          9  statement the goal is to encourage the use of clean

         10  and fuel efficient taxicabs, which I agree. Well, if

         11  you agree with that, then we've got to do it. And I

         12  think that you know that simply leaving it up to the

         13  industry to do it voluntarily is not going to do it.

         14  There is no -- every piece of evidence we have says

         15  left to its own devices, the industry will keep

         16  going status quo. The only reason we have any

         17  material number of clean air taxis today, and you'll

         18  have a bigger number by the end of the year, one

         19  hopes, is because we've sold medallions. They have

         20  to do that. Left to their own devices, they're not

         21  going to choose to do it.

         22                 So, if you agree with that, as I

         23  think you must, because that's what the data is,

         24  then the choice is do we want to go in that

         25  direction or not? Do we want to accept a fleet of 14
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          2  mile per gallon cars, or do we want to do something

          3  meaningful on air quality? That is the choice. And

          4  saying we want this, but we want the goal, we're

          5  going to work toward it and so forth, that's really,

          6  what you're really saying is, we're happy with the

          7  status quo, we're happy to have a fleet of 14 mile

          8  per gallon cars for as long as the eye can see,

          9  because the only way to do it is to change

         10  dramatically the incentive structure facing somebody

         11  buying a replacement cab.

         12                 So, given that, I think that your not

         13  supporting this bill is not consistent with the goal

         14  of achieving a clean-burning fleet. And I would ask

         15  you to do it. And what I'm told, you raised issues

         16  about availability and durability or whether they

         17  are tested or not; to be clear, 158 takes those into

         18  account. It says if the TLC says there's not an

         19  available -- you know, not enough clean fuel cars

         20  available, then the industry can continue buying the

         21  Crown Victorias as it does today. If the TLC finds

         22  that the cabs are not durable enough, then the

         23  industry can keep buying the Crown Victorias there

         24  are today.

         25                 So, this bill addresses every concern
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          2  that you've raised. I think it's time to support it

          3  and move, and let's move forward into the 21st

          4  century. And I would be curious if you have a

          5  response to that.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          7  think the Commission is committed to cleaner

          8  vehicles. I think to say that the industry is not

          9  interested in cleaner vehicles is also a misnomer. I

         10  think the key is finding the vehicle that is

         11  appropriate.

         12                 But I think one thing I want to point

         13  out is just in your comment here, you've changed

         14  your language --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are you saying

         16  there's not an appropriate clean air vehicle out

         17  there?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You said the

         21  key is finding a vehicle that's appropriate.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         23  would say there's many vehicles, but what I want to

         24  point out is just --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are there
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          2  appropriate clean air vehicles out there today?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  That could be used as taxicabs?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So let's get

          9  them.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  Well, if we're going to do that, I think we need to

         12  be smart about how we write legislation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I agree.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: And

         15  you, yourself, have used different terminology in

         16  your comment here than you have in the bill.

         17                 The bill talks very specifically

         18  about a certain type of technology, and I think what

         19  we need to think about is what are the vehicles out

         20  there that are clean, what are the vehicles out

         21  there that pollute less, and what are the vehicles

         22  that we can use that will be good taxicabs and let's

         23  think about how we get them on the road.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are you saying

         25  we have a language difference and we agree on the
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          2  principle that there are available --

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  Again, there's 11 bills --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, bear with

          6  me. Bear with me.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Because you

         10  just said, no, it's about the language. I want to

         11  make sure I understand where you're coming from.

         12                 Do you agree that, if you agree that

         13  there are clean, appropriate, your word,

         14  clean-burning fuel-efficient cab cars out there

         15  today that can be used as cabs? Which you obviously

         16  do since the TLC approved them. And then you agree

         17  that the goal is to get them in use, and what would

         18  you like to change in the bill? Or do you agree then

         19  with the principle that we give an incentive

         20  structure that pushes people to buy those cars,

         21  taking into account giving you, you absolute

         22  discretion to say, no, there's an availability

         23  problem, so we're not going to push it. No, there's

         24  a durability problem so we're not going to push it,

         25  do we agree on that principal? And it's just not a
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          2  language issue?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          4  would like to make it very clear the TLC cannot

          5  support this bill as written.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you agree

          7  on that principle?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  We're amenable to discussing it further.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So you do not

         11  agree with that. I mean, --

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: You

         13  ask --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: The principle

         15  that we want to have an incentive structure. What we

         16  put out here is two years for a regular, 14 mile per

         17  gallon car, four-year replacement for a

         18  clean-burning car; do you agree with that?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: We

         20  do not agree with that concept as it's written.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Why not?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Again, I'm here testifying, I think this is the kind

         24  of thing that we should discuss further.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, I think
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          2  it's the kind of thing that you owe the public an

          3  explanation of, of why you don't want to move

          4  forward on clean-burning.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          6  think what you're proposing is not something that

          7  the Commission is prepared to support at this time.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Then I

          9  will restate what I said at the outset. You know

         10  that there are clean burning cars out there that are

         11  appropriate. You know that if we change the

         12  incentive structure you're going to see not just a

         13  few of them on the road, but thousands of them on

         14  the road, and you don't support a bill that would do

         15  that. An I urge you to change that position because

         16  that would be in the best interest of the City.

         17                 Thank you, Chair Liu.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         19  Member Yassky. And I think the point is well taken,

         20  that, you know, the Taxi and Limousine Commission

         21  often appears before this Committee to say that they

         22  are in support of a particular goal, whether they be

         23  introducing more environmentally friendly cabs onto

         24  our City streets, or to increase the accessibility

         25  of taxis, and, yet, as I pointed out earlier, the
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          2  lack of actions in the absence of our passing

          3  legislation in this Committee and through the City

          4  Council, that actually belies the fact that even

          5  though the TLC says that it wants to do this or

          6  that, that in many cases the statements have wrung

          7  hollow.

          8                 And, so, I want to strongly encourage

          9  the TLC to work with us so that we can make real

         10  progress towards these goals that the TLC continues

         11  to state are among their priorities, and, yet, has

         12  taken little action to actually get closer to.

         13                 One final question that I have for

         14  you, Deputy Commissioner, that is the idea of the

         15  central dispatch system. For close to 25 years, I

         16  know we have a lot of experts in here who know this

         17  issue far better than I ever will, but for decades

         18  we have had this dual system where yellow taxicabs

         19  have the right to pick up on-street hails, but do

         20  not have the right to get dispatch calls. And the

         21  other part of this system being a system of livery

         22  for-hire vehicles that are dispatched and yet do not

         23  have the right to pick up on-street hails.

         24                 The system that your testimony

         25  discusses and you even go so far as to say that the
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          2  TLC has been advancing this kind of model for quite

          3  some time, and that you're happy with getting on

          4  board, doesn't that system start to blur the lines

          5  between this decades-old system of on the one hand

          6  medallion yellow for-hire -- I'm sorry, medallion

          7  yellow on-street hails, versus the dispatched

          8  for-hire vehicles, aren't you concerned that we

          9  might be blurring the lines between these two

         10  distinctively crafted systems?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

         12  think the way the testimony is structured, what we

         13  talk about in the testimony is that the way that

         14  accessible service is currently being delivered in

         15  New York City is not meeting the demands of the

         16  people that would like to take that service.

         17                 So, I would, rather than asking about

         18  focusing on blurring lines and kind of history of

         19  the for-hire industry, I would say there's a demand

         20  that a certain group of people need and want, and

         21  that it's upon the City and the TLC to figure out

         22  the right way to meet that demand, and we should be

         23  thinking about everything that we possibly can do

         24  and that we should seek to do it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's interesting
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          2  that you start out responding by saying that the way

          3  the testimony is structured, we just want to know

          4  what the word is. And, so, I find it more

          5  interesting, your latest comments, and I think, you

          6  know, this will open up a lot of opportunities to

          7  explore how car transportation is provided, or

          8  actually I should say car or van transportation is

          9  provided in this City.

         10                 Your statement that while there is a

         11  need that is not being addressed by the current

         12  system of taxis and for-hire vehicles. And I think

         13  that's what you said, right? And that therefore you

         14  are embarking on this new kind of plan that, in my

         15  opinion, does start blurring the lines of this

         16  decades-old set system. I think that is innovative,

         17  the TLC, and I think it's something that our

         18  Committee and the Council would like to work with

         19  you on. I think we have some favorable impressions

         20  from Speaker Christine Quinn. So, we'll go ahead and

         21  work together on this dispatch system, the central

         22  dispatch system. I know we are going to hear lots of

         23  comments about that from the advocates. I will say

         24  from the outset that in my opinion, given that we

         25  still live in this two-system world, that your
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          2  innovation is going to start blurring the lines

          3  between, it is not, the central dispatch system is

          4  not a substitute for making yellow taxicab street

          5  hail car service accessible to people who use

          6  wheelchairs, and that will continue to be a goal of

          7  this Committee.

          8                 And, so, I want to thank you for your

          9  testimony, and I look forward to the many, many

         10  discussions that will be forthcoming based on your

         11  latest comments about how certain needs in this City

         12  are not being addressed by the two-tiered system

         13  that we have had for decades in New York City.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 We are now going to hear from several

         16  panels. And I'm going to have to ask everybody to

         17  limit their testimony to two minutes. I know that

         18  everybody will be upset, but we do need to give

         19  everybody a chance to testify within a decent time

         20  frame, especially since there are people who have

         21  made transportation arrangements whose schedules are

         22  rather inflexible. Not because of their own doing,

         23  but because of our paratransit systems constraints.

         24                 The first panel we're going to hear

         25  from, I'm very happy to call them up as the first
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          2  panel after the Administration testifies for the

          3  very first time, that would be John Gresham, from

          4  Disabled In Action, Edith Prentiss, Disabled in

          5  Action, Jean Ryan, Disabled In Action, Craig Gurian,

          6  Anti-Discrimination Center, Metro New York, and

          7  Terry Moakley from the United Spinal Association,

          8  and the Chairman for All Taxis Campaign. Please join

          9  us at the witness table.

         10                 Following that panel we'll hear from

         11  a panel of industry representatives consisting of

         12  representatives of the Livery Owners Coalition, Gene

         13  Pero, Eileen Kelly, Artie Grover, Les Jacobs. I'm

         14  sorry, Livery Owners Coalition and also individual

         15  car service companies. Les Jacobs, Neville Cooper,

         16  Fred Santi, and John Roberts.

         17                 And John, as soon as you get settled,

         18  why don't you get started while we wait for

         19  everybody else to get to the witness table?

         20                 Once again, I want to ask everybody I

         21  know, you've been waiting for quite awhile, to

         22  please limit your most salient comments to two

         23  minutes so that we can hear from everybody. We have

         24  dozens of people set to testify this afternoon.

         25                 Sergeants, please take Mr. Gresham's
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          2  testimony.

          3                 Mr. Gresham, please proceed.

          4                 MR. GRESHAM: Thank you for calling

          5  us. First, I've handed the Sergeant my written

          6  testimony, which covers what I had to say about the

          7  position of Disabled In Action, my client. I wanted

          8  to respond in my two minutes to some of the

          9  questions asked. We have in the past supplied cost

         10  information, I would just like to reiterate what it

         11  showed. Basically that yellow cab side, if you

         12  bought accessible retrofitted vehicles in bulk,

         13  they're comparable in price to a Crown Vic. That

         14  would be true in this City if the TLC hadn't just

         15  adopted a regulation to make it about one and a half

         16  times as expensive, which we would like you to look

         17  at getting them to roll back. But in the real world

         18  you can buy the kind of vehicle that serves all over

         19  the United States, it has an accessible taxicab for

         20  about the same price you can buy a Crown Vic for.

         21                 Now, on the question of the livery

         22  industry using used vehicles, of course that's a

         23  difficult thing to change and we don't propose that

         24  you do. One of the adjustments that may need to be

         25  made in 90-A is a phase-in to take account of
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          2  availability of vehicles, and it may be perfectly

          3  possible to start with larger operations and move

          4  down over time.

          5                 We'd like to discuss that kind of

          6  thing with you.

          7                 But 90-A is a significant bill. It's

          8  an important positive step to see this introduced,

          9  and we commend you for doing it. It would move

         10  toward making the livery industry accessible, and I

         11  think the way it would work in the bases where the

         12  drivers own the vehicles, is you leave it to that

         13  base and that group of drivers to work out some

         14  incentive system internally to get to the requisite

         15  number of vehicles affiliated with that base.

         16                 A driver pays an amount of money for

         17  dispatch calls. One conceivable way to do it would

         18  be to reduce the fee the driver pays for the calls,

         19  if some additional expense actually incurred in

         20  putting an accessible vehicle on the road.

         21                 That's the kind of thing you can do.

         22  You have to focus on bases because that's how the

         23  thing is organized.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thanks, John.

         25                 Edith. You have two people.
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          2                 MS. PRENTISS: Yes, four minutes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Edith, seriously,

          4  please keep your comments --

          5                 MS. PRENTISS: No, I'm serious. I'm

          6  Craig and I'm also Edith, so I will just make it

          7  very quick.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          9                 MS. PRENTISS: First of all, I'd like

         10  to thank, in addition to yourself, the Committee, et

         11  cetera, I'd also like to thank Margarita, and those

         12  38 sponsors on Intro. 84.

         13                 Many of the issues that we're talking

         14  about come down to issues of comparability, and I

         15  think that when we start talking about issues that

         16  we're talking about for green, we have to talk about

         17  exactly the same issues for accessible. And if we're

         18  going to talk about having information about green

         19  taxis, I would really love to see similar

         20  information about why accessible taxis are important

         21  in New York City, I think for the general public

         22  accessible taxis are a bit of fluff, and I think

         23  that would be very helpful.

         24                 I will also concur that 356 is

         25  separate but unequal, and that it's very important
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          2  what your point was, the taxis are hailed and car

          3  services are called. We do not support the concept

          4  of a call system for yellow taxis, but are willing

          5  to discuss and consider the call system for livery

          6  because I think that would perfectly show the fact

          7  that liveries for hires don't necessarily work. And

          8  it's interesting because in Economic Development at

          9  CB 12 the other night, there was a base coming

         10  forward for a renewal, and he says we'll fold the

         11  wheelchair and put it in the trunk, and then he's

         12  being told, no, he says we pay hundreds of dollars a

         13  month. So they are in contract, they don't know what

         14  that is.

         15                 It seems as though to the for-hire

         16  vehicle industry, that is the cost of protection,

         17  okay? Not credit.

         18                 Craig wanted it to be said that it

         19  took, you know, in '61 JFK said we could put a man

         20  on the moon, and in '69 we did that. Similarly,

         21  there is no way we're going to the TLC through an

         22  evolutionary process, except by making legal changes

         23  and mandates.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Edith,

         25  and thank you, Craig.
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          2                 Jean. We did this with Jean, I can't

          3  believe she's not here. Okay. Why don't we hear from

          4  Terry Moakley then.

          5                 MR. MOAKLEY: Good afternoon,

          6  everybody. I just real quickly want to say thank you

          7  to everybody on the task force that the Speaker has

          8  assembled to work on this issue for all their hard

          9  work.

         10                 Is that better, Joe?

         11                 We want to thank the task force for

         12  all the hard work they've been doing. I would, you

         13  know, want to again express our opposition to Intro.

         14  356. I'd like to make two points about it and not to

         15  repeat what others have made. The impracticality of

         16  it operating on the streets of Manhattan strikes us

         17  as being a key issue here.

         18                 Taxi drivers are going to have to

         19  pass up other street hails to keep going until they

         20  get to the destination of the wheelchair user who

         21  calls in for service. I mean, that's just going to

         22  alienate taxi drivers and other passengers who are

         23  being passed by, and that's kind of a bizarre

         24  circumstance for a system that moves people quickly.

         25  It just doesn't make sense to us.
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          2                 And the other thing about the bill is

          3  that it puts wheelchair users in the position of

          4  having to prove the man. And you know, when a

          5  transportation service is good, John, demand will

          6  grow naturally. The New York City accessible bus

          7  system is a good example of that. You know, between

          8  1981 and 1995, when they were ramping up to 100

          9  percent accessibility, the reuse of the buses by

         10  people who use wheelchairs grew gradually and then

         11  after 1995, it literally grew by leaps and bounds

         12  after the system was fully accessible to the point

         13  where you have 80,000. The point is if you build it

         14  accessible, we will come. It's just that's the way

         15  it is. The reason we don't show up at places, the

         16  reason why there aren't more of us here at this

         17  hearing is, people can't get here.

         18                 The other thing is Intro. 378. I want

         19  to briefly thank Council Member Koppell for

         20  introducing that bill. We think it's a gradual

         21  phased-in replacement cycle that is not going to put

         22  anybody out of business. We firmly believe that this

         23  kind of a law, if it's passed in this City, will

         24  fuel the technology, will fuel the manufacturers to

         25  make vehicles that will be both wheelchair
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          2  accessible and usable and durable as taxis on the

          3  street of New York City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          5                 Thank you very much for testifying.

          6  We will now hear from the next panel, consisting of

          7  Les Jacobs, Neville Cooper, Fred Santi, John

          8  Roberts, Eileen Kelly, Eugene Pero and Artie Grover.

          9                 I kind of rushed the order there for

         10  a bit, but we'll hear from the Livery Owners

         11  Coalition representative first, followed by the

         12  representatives of the individual car services.

         13                 Please come up to the witness table.

         14  Following this panel we'll hear from members of the

         15  New York Taxi Workers Alliance, Bhairaivi Desai,

         16  Osman Chowdhury, William Lindauer and Kevin

         17  Fitzpatrick. After that we'll hear from more

         18  representatives from the industry.

         19                 Thank you. Earlier I had mentioned

         20  that I was happy to finally be able to call the

         21  panel of disabled advocates up to testify first, and

         22  the reason I said that is because generally speaking

         23  they have waited towards the very end of the

         24  hearings to testify, and the reason for that has

         25  always generally been that they have been supportive
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          2  of the issue that we've been advancing and so we,

          3  believe it or not, like to hear from people who are

          4  opposed to what we're trying to do first, before we

          5  hear from the people who are totally with us.

          6                 And so I want to thank the

          7  environmental advocates in advance for being very

          8  patient this afternoon.

          9                 Gene, you want to go first?

         10                 MR. PERO: Good afternoon, Chairman,

         11  and members of the City Council. My name is Eugene

         12  Pero. I am the President of the Livery Owners

         13  Coalition. I am also the owner of Safeway Car

         14  Service in Brooklyn. Thank you for this opportunity

         15  to speak to you today on the issue at hand, that is

         16  wheelchair accessible transportation.

         17                 As you know, this organization

         18  represents small mom and pop car service businesses

         19  throughout the five boroughs. For the most part, our

         20  members own the vehicles dispatched by the

         21  respective bases. An average price a base owner pays

         22  for a used vehicle is between three, 3,000 and 6,500

         23  dollars. The insurance for each vehicle is between

         24  seven and 9,000 dollars per year.

         25                 Our businesses already transport
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          2  people with disabilities and have done so over the

          3  past 30 years. These people include the blind with,

          4  without dogs, persons with walkers and

          5  non-mechanical wheelchairs. As long as a disabled

          6  person can transfer into the vehicle and the

          7  wheelchair or other walking aid can be placed in the

          8  trunk of the car.

          9                 We must emphasize that we're not

         10  trying to avoid transporting disabled persons and

         11  mechanical wheelchairs, but it's financially

         12  impossible for us to do.

         13                 It was suggested by the Taxi and

         14  Limousine Commission that we group together and

         15  purchase a van or vans to transport the disabled.

         16  This is highly improbable. As each owner has a

         17  different way of operating their business and a

         18  different price structure for each trip.

         19                 The disability community wants each

         20  and every base to have an accessible vehicle which

         21  is very unrealistic and unnecessary. At this time we

         22  have no concrete statistics on the amount of

         23  disabled persons using private non-Access-A-Ride

         24  transportation, but from anec -- whatever it is --

         25  experience, the usage is very low.
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          2                 The amount of calls received by our

          3  members during the last year has been minimal at the

          4  most. We represent about 25 fleet-owned bases, we

          5  have meetings and at the meetings we request the

          6  amount of transportation requested by the mechanical

          7  wheelchair community and disabled community, and

          8  basically it's been very minimal.

          9                 We are therefore respectfully

         10  offering another solution to this problem. We

         11  suggested the segment of the for-hire industry which

         12  handles this type of work is the paratransit

         13  industry and for the following reasons: There are

         14  205 paratransit bases with 2,275 licensed and

         15  insured vehicles, and 1,480 licensed and trained

         16  professional drivers who can handle persons with

         17  disability with care and safety.

         18                 I only got a paragraph to read.

         19  Paratransit operations have proper equipment, can

         20  easily convert a piece or two into an unmarked

         21  socially acceptable accessible van to satisfy the

         22  needs of the disabled community.

         23                 Paratransit operators easily

         24  redefined their price structures on a couple of

         25  vehicles to satisfy the price concern of the
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          2  disabled community. In this regard, under the

          3  Freedom plan, perhaps some subsidy can be given to

          4  defray the costs of these special vehicles.

          5                 I'm also attaching a detailed study

          6  of the subject carefully prepared by Eileen Kelly,

          7  Queens representative of our organization. Please

          8  note in addition to the obvious costs noted above,

          9  there is absolutely no insurance available to

         10  regular car service, which cover these specialized

         11  vehicles.

         12                 The only carrier available to us is

         13  American Transit. And this president, which is Ed

         14  Nedigan, Jr. (phonetic) emphatically stated that he

         15  will not insure an accessible vehicle. We only have

         16  one carrier, it was American Transit. I don't care

         17  what anybody says, TLC, anybody, nobody will insure

         18  our industry, and the only way to obtain this

         19  insurance is through the assigned risk plan at

         20  $25,000 per year per vehicle.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right, thank

         22  you.

         23                 Does Artie want to say something?

         24  Artie?

         25                 That's fine. Thank you very much.
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          2                 How about Les Jacobs? Okay, great.

          3                 MR. GROVER: Hi. My name is Artie

          4  Grover. And I am a Staten Island representative to

          5  the Livery Owners Coalition of New York and an owner

          6  of Mid-Island Car Service in Staten Island, which I

          7  own all the vehicles. I'm a fleet owner.

          8                 I'm here today to ask the City

          9  Council members to vote against Intro. 90-A for the

         10  following reasons:

         11                 The livery fleet operators are being

         12  asked to carry the entire burden of the accessible

         13  transportation, and it was proven by Symphony, which

         14  was a carrier for the disabled, the black car

         15  industry, where over the period of 14 months they

         16  received 27 calls. I believe at this point they lost

         17  a million dollars, and they shut it down.

         18                 It addition, it is apparent that the

         19  City Council did not do a study of the actual use of

         20  accessible vans where the recent Taxi and Limousine

         21  Commission rulings regarding these vans are

         22  accessible or not.

         23                 I have personally conducted a study

         24  of Staten Island, the amount of calls that have been

         25  received for the accessible transportation, and last
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          2  year, 2005, the entire Staten Island received ten

          3  calls where at this point we had someone that we

          4  sent it out to.

          5                 So, to go into this cost and pay the

          6  insurance of 19,000 to 25,000 dollars a year to the

          7  assigned risk doesn't make sense. Yes, do they need

          8  help? Yes, they do. But putting everything on us is

          9  not the answer.

         10                 Besides the exorbitant cost of

         11  accessible vehicles and insurance for the same, our

         12  drivers would have to be trained to handle persons

         13  with disabilities. Many of our companies disabled

         14  and elderly drivers, who would be unable to qualify

         15  to drive these vans. This would cause a complete

         16  disruption of our standard business practices that

         17  we have today.

         18                 Another important point that the

         19  disability community deserve is minivan service.

         20  Only, however, a converted minivan ramp can only

         21  handle approximately 550 pounds at most. Many

         22  mechanical wheelchairs weigh as much as 300 pounds.

         23  Adding the weight of a passenger and their personal

         24  belongings on a minivan could not be used for

         25  everyone. Minivans cannot be used to carry this type
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          2  of weight, especially on the streets of the City of

          3  New York. They can never hold up and will not be

          4  warranteed by the manufacturer.

          5                 In essence, you are asking the

          6  for-hire industry to subsidize the private

          7  transportations of persons with disability. No other

          8  business dealing with disabled is being asked to do

          9  the same.

         10                 The car manufacturers charge more for

         11  a converted van and a private market insurance

         12  company is entitled to opt out of insuring these

         13  vans all together.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Artie, wrap up,

         15  please.

         16                 MR. GROVER: In all fairness --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Artie. In

         18  all fairness, Jean was the two people, just like you

         19  were two people. Les.

         20                 Oh, I'm sorry, why don't you proceed.

         21                 MR. SANTI: Thank you very much. My

         22  name is Fred Santi. I'm from Dial 7 Car & Limousine.

         23  With the two minutes it's hard to put it all into

         24  perspective, but I'll just try and give you a few

         25  points.
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          2                 In looking at purchasing vehicles for

          3  our company, based on the local law that's being

          4  proposed, we're looking at approximately a million

          5  dollars in cost to our company to be in this with

          6  the language that says for ten or more vehicles, of

          7  accessible vehicles for every ten, that puts the

          8  number at at least 40 vehicles that we have to

          9  maintain, and we have affiliates, so the cars are

         10  not ours. If we had to go purchase that again and be

         11  a million dollars at least including insurance in

         12  the vehicle in order to comply with that.

         13                 We also, as regulated by the TLC, we

         14  do have affiliate agreements and with one company

         15  that I have the contract for at least, Ride For All,

         16  that I could show you, and that we do in addition to

         17  wheelchair-bound folks, do also blind dogs,

         18  seeing-eye dogs and the such.

         19                 Another point that I wanted to bring

         20  up that's proposed here is luxury vehicles and the

         21  black car services are being exempted from this, and

         22  the question is they provide service to a lot of the

         23  same individuals that our service provides service

         24  to, and the question is why would they be left out

         25  and not have to provide the service in addition to
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          2  just the for hire vehicles and be excluded?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's a fair point.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 Mr. Cooper.

          6                 MR. COOPER: Good afternoon, Mr.

          7  Chairman, and City Council members. My name is

          8  Neville Cooper, and I'm President of the Humming

          9  Bird Car Service. What is happening here this

         10  afternoon is very complex matter, and it cannot be

         11  discussed in two or three minutes.

         12                 I don't think even the Taxi and

         13  Limousine --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Try to do it in two.

         15                 MR. COOPER: I don't think the Taxi

         16  and Limousine Commission even understands the

         17  operation of our business. There are four distinct

         18  operations within the FHV industry, and it isn't a

         19  one size fits all. We have to know what the various

         20  operations are, and nobody has ever done a study to

         21  see what the Vera's operations are.

         22                 Even right now the Workers

         23  Compensation is having difficulty making the laws to

         24  govern our industry because of the complex system.

         25  If it is that you all will do a study and get the
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          2  input of the industry and hear what we have to say

          3  and sit down with everybody and do a technical study

          4  of it, I think we can go forward.

          5                 Right now we are inventing the wheel

          6  because we have our Transit and we have our

          7  Access-A-Ride. I don't see why it is being enforced

          8  upon the base owners to buy vehicles. That isn't

          9  necessary at this time, because there are many base

         10  owners that cannot afford it. They do not own

         11  vehicles. We have to take that into consideration. I

         12  think you all should have some more sit-ins, sit

         13  down with the industry and see where we can go.

         14                 And at the same time I want to put

         15  this into the record for Mr. Lloyd Taylor. He asked

         16  me to give this to you all, so that you can put it

         17  into the record and have it.

         18                 Thank you very much for your time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. The

         20  Sergeants will retrieve that testimony from Lloyd.

         21                 I want to thank this panel.

         22                 MS. KELLY: Did I lose my time?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Actually, I thought

         24  Gene took your time. I think you're going to make

         25  pretty much the same remarks.
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          2                 MS. KELLY: Well, let me just say what

          3  he didn't say.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes. Very briefly,

          5  please.

          6                 MS. KELLY: And that's that I'm here

          7  today to ask you to review President Bush's new

          8  Freedom Initiative, and it's for the integration of

          9  people with disabilities to all aspects of American

         10  life before you consider this legislation.

         11                 The new Freedom funds is specifically

         12  for above and beyond ADA, and accessible wheelchair

         13  transportation by taxis and for hire is above and

         14  beyond ADA, and one of the examples used as a

         15  relevant project for these funds.

         16                 The FTA contact is listed in my

         17  testimony. It's James Gavaya. He's at Region 2

         18  office in Manhattan. And he would be able to give

         19  you some guidance as to where NIMTECH is with the

         20  project money and the distribution of the funds, and

         21  although the government said there should be no hold

         22  up of the funds for 2006, this doesn't appear to be

         23  the case, but there's $5 million plus for these

         24  projects, and at some point it's going to become

         25  available.
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          2                 The same going forward, there will be

          3  another 5 million up until 2009. And in addition,

          4  Easter Seals has been allocated and a side in the

          5  same bill, the President's bill, of approximately

          6  $200,000 each year for the next four years,

          7  specifically for New York City livery vehicles.

          8                 Whether the TLC still has funds for

          9  accessible vehicles is unknown to us at this time.

         10                 Regarding the insurance issue, there

         11  was a letter from a Maurice Morgenstern, stating

         12  that there was insurance, and no more of a charge

         13  for wheelchair accessible insurance than there was

         14  for regular taxi insurance.

         15                 And I included a list from their

         16  website. There is not one company that is writing

         17  taxi or wheelchair accessible insurance, other than

         18  American Transit, who is not riding wheelchair

         19  accessible, and the only market available is the

         20  $25,000 premium in the assigned risk.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 I want to thank this panel for their

         24  testimony. Let me just mention to everyone that

         25  Intro. 90 is an altered version of an earlier bill
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          2  that had been introduced, which would have required

          3  all base stations to have at least one accessible

          4  vehicle. And we understood that that was a

          5  tremendous, that would have been or could have been

          6  a tremendous burden on the smallest of base

          7  stations, but Intro. 90 has now been modified, so we

          8  are now looking for modest, I think reasonable,

          9  small percentage of the larger base stations to

         10  have, in terms of the reasonable percentage of

         11  vehicles that they should have on hand that are

         12  wheelchair accessible.

         13                 So, it is not as onerous as the

         14  original version, which would have mandated that

         15  every single base station have an accessible

         16  vehicle.

         17                 Now we are only looking at the larger

         18  base stations, and even with them asking for only a

         19  modest minimal percentage of wheelchair accessible

         20  vehicles.

         21                 We will continue to work on this

         22  bill. I would ask you to think carefully about what

         23  can be done and what cannot be done, as opposed to

         24  simply saying, no, we don't want any of it.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 Our next panel will consist of

          3  representatives from the New York Taxi Workers

          4  Alliance. Please proceed to the witness table.

          5                 Oh, I'm sorry, I didn't realize you

          6  were here.

          7                 Okay, Les Jacobs, please come up and

          8  testify very quickly, as you had missed your window

          9  of opportunity already, but we will -- we're not

         10  assigning you to be any part of anybody, we're just

         11  asking you to come up to the witness table.

         12                 Okay, so Les Jacobs and John Roberts.

         13  Following them we'll hear from representatives of

         14  the Taxi Workers Alliance.

         15                 Gentlemen, please proceed.

         16                 MR. JACOBS: Good afternoon. My name

         17  is Les Jacobs. I am the owner of for-hire based A

         18  Ride For All.

         19                 A Ride For All is an accessible

         20  transportation provider, operating 24/7 since

         21  October of 2003, with four ADA compliant wheelchair

         22  accessible vans and minivans.

         23                 A Ride For All also currently has 137

         24  community car service --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you have a
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          2  prepared statement?

          3                 MR. JACOBS: Yes, I do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Can we

          5  just wait for a minute until we get that? Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, and we'll

          8  restart the clock for you. Please proceed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Go ahead,

         10  because I know we're short on time.

         11                 MR. JACOBS: All right. My name is Les

         12  Jacobs, the owner of A Ride For All, an accessible

         13  transportation provider that operated since October

         14  2003. We have four ADA compliant wheelchair

         15  accessible vans and minivans, and we currently have

         16  137 community car service affiliation contracts.

         17                 I want to thank you for addressing

         18  this serious issue, and there are several items,

         19  realities and problems that I would like to address

         20  and draw to your attention to be corrected.

         21                 Number one, demand thus far has been

         22  significantly lower than most would expect. In our

         23  third year, A Ride For All is providing only five to

         24  six per week through its 137-affiliated bases. I

         25  repeat, six trips a week for all the four vehicles
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          2  providing a total income of approximately $243 per

          3  week. The only way we have survived was by doing

          4  private work and being subsidized through base

          5  affiliation fees.

          6                 2. My experience has shown that the

          7  number of affiliated bases and their vehicle count

          8  has no correlation to the number of trips and the

          9  request for trips from the disabled community. The

         10  FHV bases are there as a means of subsidizing this

         11  program which cannot in any way be subsidized or

         12  sustained solely on its own volume of affordable

         13  accessible transportation.

         14                 The plan to reduce and restrict the

         15  number of affiliated companies allowed to contract

         16  with an accessible provider will only increase the

         17  price of affiliation, as we cannot stay in business

         18  otherwise.

         19                 If one wheelchair accessible company

         20  with four vehicles, 137-affiliated bases and little

         21  competition cannot survive, how can the Council

         22  assume that 2,500 wheelchair accessible vehicles

         23  with 550 bases will survive if this proposed law

         24  passes.

         25                 Collecting a car service fare for a
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          2  vehicle that costs in excess of 40,000 plus high

          3  insurance costs and high driver costs is

          4  unsustainable. Not to mention ongoing repairs.

          5                 Let no one tell you otherwise,

          6  wheelchair accessible transportation is a specialty

          7  field, and it cannot be just part of the community

          8  car service fleets. Trips must be handled by the few

          9  bases, with the focus, the expertise and the

         10  dedication.

         11                 If I can finish that paragraph.

         12  Loading, securing and unloading of passengers takes

         13  much longer than the average passenger and the

         14  driver must be well trained or there is a risk of

         15  injury to the passenger.

         16                 The current system needs work but the

         17  goal can be achieved. The disabled community has a

         18  right and deserves the opportunity to live in and

         19  enjoy every aspect of our great City. The City

         20  Council cannot solve the wheelchair accessible

         21  vehicle issue by dumping on the community car

         22  services, but it can achieve much better results by

         23  taking certain actions, including increasing the

         24  amount of wheelchair accessible taxicabs, enforcing

         25  the TLC Rule 6.07(f) to ensure all 550 bases are
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          2  compliant, and compliant with viable accessible

          3  providers.

          4                 And lastly, by increasing New York

          5  City and/or private accessible vehicle subsidies

          6  that are vital in determining and attaining the true

          7  supply/demand need for accessible vehicles and for

          8  industry growth.

          9                 I'm hopeful that a solution can come

         10  forth, and I'm very eager to participate and lend to

         11  the City Council my expertise to the situation.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         13                 Mr. Roberts.

         14                 MR. ROBERTS: Good afternoon. John

         15  Roberts. Fast Operating Corp base license B00256.

         16  We'll skip to the data, the numbers that you were

         17  looking for earlier.

         18                 Section 4C asks for one out of every

         19  ten livery cars to be accessible vehicles. This ten

         20  percent mandate is not possible, and it does not

         21  make any sense.

         22                 25,000 licensed community car service

         23  vehicles in New York City serve as 8.1 million

         24  residents. That's one vehicle per 324 residents. New

         25  York City has 55 to 60,000 wheelchair users.
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          2  Sixty-thousand wheelchair user residents represents

          3  0.75 percent of the total New York City residents.

          4  They should be represented accordingly. Therefore,

          5  we feel the percentage of community car service

          6  vehicles that should be accessible should also be

          7  0.75 percent of the fleet and not ten percent of the

          8  fleet.

          9                 Ten percent of the 25,000 to be

         10  wheelchair accessible vehicles would mean 2,500

         11  vehicles to service 60,000 residents. That boils

         12  down to one vehicle per 24 wheelchair user

         13  residents, as opposed to one vehicle per 324

         14  non-wheelchair-using residents.

         15                 The mathematics. The average cost of

         16  an accessible vehicle is $40,000. Multiplied by

         17  2,500 vehicles, which the mandate looks for, means a

         18  total investment required by the Council from the

         19  community car services of $100 million. $100

         20  million. The Council is excluding luxury limousines,

         21  excluding the black cars, for some reason asking

         22  only the community car services to carry the burden

         23  of a $100 million investment on its own.

         24                 In summary, the base stations are not

         25  the owners of the affiliated vehicles. We were not
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          2  formed to own vehicles. We cannot force an owner of

          3  an accessible vehicle to affiliate with us.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for the

          6  brevity and effectiveness with which you made your

          7  point. Thank you.

          8                 Representatives of the Taxi and

          9  Workers Alliance, please proceed to the witness

         10  table.

         11                 Following them, we will hear

         12  testimony from Michael Harris and Anne Emerman and

         13  Andrew Kurzweil, Cathy James, Janice Bartley, and

         14  Florence Craddock. And the individual who filled out

         15  this. Oh, I'm sorry, Matt Shotkin.

         16                 Please proceed.

         17                 MS. DESAI: Good afternoon. My name is

         18  Bhairaivi Desai, and I'm from New York Taxi Workers

         19  Alliance.

         20                 I think that we clearly have a very

         21  complex issue here. On one hand there is a real

         22  moral imperative to serve all New Yorkers, including

         23  those that are wheelchair bound. It's something that

         24  certainly drivers, and we represent 7,000 taxi

         25  drivers in New York City, are very much committed
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          2  to.

          3                 But on the other hand, there is the

          4  issue with the vehicle itself, and there is one

          5  common misconception about the yellow cab industry

          6  in New York. There is a conception that it's only

          7  the fleets that own the vehicles, but in reality 40

          8  percent of the drivers are vehicle owners. They're

          9  driver/owned vehicle operators. So, 100 percent of

         10  vehicle costs are borne by the drivers themselves.

         11                 There are another 20 percent of

         12  drivers that are owner operators who again bear not

         13  only the cost of the medallion but also the vehicle

         14  itself.

         15                 So, there are serious questions here

         16  about insurance, for example. Secondly, about the

         17  durability of the vehicle. The durability not only

         18  affects the vehicle owners, but it affects all

         19  taxicab drivers because if in the middle of your

         20  shift your car breaks down, it's the driver that is

         21  at the loss, it's the driver that has already begun

         22  the shift at a negative, paying to lease that

         23  medallion and vehicle, and when the car breaks down,

         24  you not only lose the money that you paid up front,

         25  but you also lose your potential income. And if you
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          2  are the car owner, it could be days, weeks,

          3  sometimes up to a month before a car is repaired and

          4  back on the street.

          5                 Drivers already face these issues

          6  with their Crown Vis, if their vehicle is damaged in

          7  an accident, and we've seen that when this occurred,

          8  drivers bear losses in the thousands upon thousands.

          9  So, it concerns us to have vehicles that are not

         10  going to be reliable, because, it's the drivers are

         11  really going to bear the brunt of the losses.

         12                 I would just like to end by saying

         13  it's really important that we don't look at these

         14  issues in a vacuum. That we cannot require the taxi

         15  industry to make certain changes, whereas other

         16  industries that we depend on, for example, such as

         17  the insurance industry, as well as the

         18  manufacturers, are themselves not being held

         19  accountable to higher standards.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         21                 Next, William.

         22                 MR. LINDAUER: Hi. I'm Bill Lindauer,

         23  of the Taxi Workers Alliance. I think the driver is

         24  the forgotten person in this matter. Yes, I, like

         25  all members of the Taxi Workers Alliance, and for

                                                            117

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Taxis For All, for hybrids with the clean air,

          3  motherhood and apple pie, but we don't want to be

          4  the one who pays for it. We pay enough already. We

          5  haven't gotten a gas surcharge, despite airlines

          6  getting it, other City cab companies getting it. The

          7  TLC is callous and cruel. And one way, and I'm sure

          8  the owners and the fleets are going to ask for lease

          9  cap raises from the TLC, and they enjoy very cozy,

         10  if not incestrious relationship with the TLC, but

         11  one way we could ease the burden on drivers is to

         12  scrap the crap. The GPS. The public has been sold a

         13  bill of goods. It's buying a pig in a poke, and it's

         14  of no benefit to the driver or the public. It will

         15  cost a fortune, and these costs will have to be

         16  passed on. It's despicable, dictorial system hatched

         17  by an agency that is a cesspool of corruption,

         18  erroneoism, collusion.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Do you have any

         20  point you'd like to make about the bills we're

         21  discussing today?

         22                 MR. LINDAUER: I just wanted to make a

         23  general statement that we must protect the driver's

         24  right for an income. They're suffering now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.
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          2                 Mr. Chowdhury.

          3                 MR. CHOWDHURY: (Difficult to discern

          4  due to dialect in language.) Good afternoon. My name

          5  is Osman Chowdhury. I'm the New York Taxi Alliance

          6  Organizer. Last year, three months I dropped,

          7  October, November, December with cap, and cost like

          8  800 over. I came to City one hour late, and I stop

          9  them, I pay the high lease. I pay high leases and we

         10  don't make enough money, and with the wheelchair, we

         11  need more time, take out take in. Driver not going

         12  to benefit the wheelchair accessible. When the

         13  wheelchair cap (unintelligible) the individual not

         14  honor corporation. If you give corporation, they're

         15  making higher rate, and all money can come from

         16  their pocket, and when I come to City I'm not going

         17  to take them, because my lease, cost me 200 dollar,

         18  and I waste my time, I pick them up. But how come

         19  it's not realistic? I need all the cap, wheelchair

         20  accessible goes to driver hands, and the minimum

         21  price, not to have the corporation have much money.

         22  Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 Mr. Fitzpatrick.

         25                 MR. FITZPATRICK: There, it's on now.
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          2  You know, we are heating up the planet, there's no

          3  doubt about that. You know, I mean Al Gore is right,

          4  we might wind up destroying the human species.

          5                 You know, we also have a gas

          6  shortage. Now, frankly, why did we go into Iraq. We

          7  knew the real reason was for oil.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Fitzpatrick.

          9                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Would you like to

         11  give your opinions about the bills that we're

         12  discussing today?

         13                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes. I'm putting the

         14  general thing back.

         15                 But what drivers are concerned about

         16  is in this industry people are very good at

         17  socializing the risks and privatizing the profits.

         18                 Now, we already see this happening

         19  with hybrids. Now, we do not oppose hybrids. We

         20  think this is a good idea. It's necessary. It's

         21  necessary for the health of the City. It's necessary

         22  for the health of the planet. But what's happening

         23  with hybrids, and as Brother Osman was saying, the

         24  owners are charging higher than the lease cap on

         25  these things, you know, on the assumption that
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          2  drivers, well, you're saving gas, so give the money

          3  to us.

          4                 Now, if we're going to operate on

          5  that system, you know, nobody is going to be in

          6  favor of it. Everybody is just going to see hybrids

          7  as another scam by the owners and the TLC. You know,

          8  we expect that if hybrids come into, you know, once

          9  we get a lot of hybrids on the road, which I think

         10  is a good idea. Eventually we're all going to be

         11  alternate technology cars, but, you know, if the

         12  only advantage to drivers is that the owners are

         13  going to make even bigger profits off of us, no, we

         14  can't agree to that.

         15                 Now, some ideas are very good ideas.

         16  For example, we are in favor of a joint dispatch,

         17  but if all this is going to be, is going to be a way

         18  to bring GPS in, and, remember --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, thank you very

         20  much. That last point, I just want to be clear. You

         21  would be in favor, are you speaking for yourself or

         22  the Taxi Workers Alliance?

         23                 MR. FITZPATRICK: I'm speaking for

         24  myself. We haven't had time to discuss this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.
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          2                 MR. FITZPATRICK: But I remember when

          3  the historic compromise was made in the early

          4  eighties. The TLC Commission --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That was before cell

          6  phones and text messaging.

          7                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And GPS.

          9                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Well --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We get the point.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 I have a question for Osman. So,

         13  you're a livery driver?

         14                 MR. CHOWDHURY: No, I'm a yellow cab

         15  driver.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You're a yellow cab

         17  driver. Okay. So then what bill are we proposing

         18  that would hit you in your pocket?

         19                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, for example,

         20  the hybrids, the fact of the matter is, his lease is

         21  going up on it illegally. The TLC has a lease cap.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. But our bill,

         23  we're not saying that there's going to be a lease

         24  cap increase. So, how are our bills going to affect

         25  your bottom line as a yellow cab driver?
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          2                 MR. CHOWDHURY: I --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry, do you

          4  also own your vehicle?

          5                 MR. CHOWDHURY: No, just lease.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, I'm just

          7  trying to understand what the impact is.

          8                 MR. CHOWDHURY: Impact is like the

          9  balance on the lease cap. The lease cap 66, they're

         10  charging like $800. If I pay the $800 --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are you saying that

         12  your taxi company is charging you more than the

         13  lease cap?

         14                 MR. CHOWDHURY: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. Why don't you

         16  give us information about that, and we'd be more

         17  than happy to follow up on that. But that's not an

         18  issue --

         19                 MR. CHOWDHURY: Because, the car, the

         20  driver not going to benefit, also not good for us. I

         21  give them more money, how can I give them more time.

         22                 MS. DESAI: If I could just clarify?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         24                 Oh, so you're talking about the

         25  amount of time it takes to bring -- okay, well, we
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          2  appreciate that everybody in this City works very

          3  hard, but that is probably going to be the very

          4  least of our concerns, the fact that we sometimes

          5  have to help New Yorkers, and it might take a little

          6  bit more time for us to do that, okay? Thank you.

          7                 MS. DESAI: Nome of us were speaking

          8  against either hybrids or wheelchair accessibles.

          9  We've actually been in favor.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, I know.

         11                 MS. DESAI: Particularly for

         12  wheelchair accessible.

         13                 I think what we're saying is that all

         14  of this needs to be contextualized as to how it's

         15  going to affect drivers on a day-to-day basis. And

         16  because the bills don't address those issues, that's

         17  what we, because that's who we represent need to

         18  bring to the table.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         20  And I would also --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         22  may I?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What we need

         25  to know, and I think the Chairman was making this
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          2  point, but it's a very important point, we need to

          3  know how you see this affecting the drivers. We

          4  don't want to hurt the drivers. We understand the

          5  drivers work very long hours for relatively modest

          6  reward, so we need to know how each of these bills,

          7  if they do affect you, if they don't affect you,

          8  well, then you can say this doesn't affect us, but

          9  if one or more of the bills affects you, we need to

         10  know specifically how the bill would affect you.

         11                 So, for instance, the bill that would

         12  mandate over a period of time, my bill, that all the

         13  taxis will come accessible, or the bill that

         14  provides incentives. The Yassky bill that provides

         15  incentives for accessible and clean air taxis; does

         16  that affect you? I don't see it affecting you. I

         17  think that's what the Chairman is -- we have to know

         18  how you feel it would affect you.

         19                 MS. DESAI: Both, for example,

         20  specifically Intros 158-A, as well as Intro. 378,

         21  those are the ones that we're most particularly

         22  concerned with. Because these are the two bills that

         23  would really eventually help to convert the entire

         24  fleet into either wheelchair accessible or hybrids.

         25  And, so, what we're saying is that through that
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          2  process of conversion, how drivers will get affected

          3  is if we put vehicles on the road that have not been

          4  proven, they have not been tested to be durable,

          5  that will affect our members, both in terms of the

          6  cost of the vehicle, because, remember, in the

          7  yellow cab industry, increasingly it's the drivers

          8  that are now paying 100 percent for the vehicle

          9  cost, and secondly, in terms of the loss of time, if

         10  that car breaks down. I mean, if you're paying up to

         11  $150 per shift and your expenses, and you lose five

         12  hours of that shift or the entire shift, that's $150

         13  out of your pocket for a hard-working person, and if

         14  those days add up from once a week to several times

         15  a week, that is substantial losses.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right. Obviously

         17  this economics that play in both directions here.

         18  The cost of the vehicles are not simply totally

         19  borne by the drivers, ultimately it trickles down to

         20  the fare payers and the taxi riding public.

         21  Otherwise, we would have a system that just would

         22  not work.

         23                 Thank you very much for your

         24  testimony.

         25                 Next we'll hear from Michael Harris,
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          2  Anne Emerman, Andrew Kurzweil, Cathy James and

          3  Janice Bartley.

          4                 I had mentioned three other people

          5  but I will ask them to hold off just because the

          6  panel is unwieldy. And then will be followed by,

          7  once again, representatives of the industry. We have

          8  Victor Dizengoff, Vincent Sipon, Joe Gionetto, David

          9  Pollock and Arthur Goldstein.

         10                 Mr. Harris, please proceed.

         11                 MR. HARRIS: Thank you. I'm only going

         12  to touch on two of these bills and allow my

         13  colleagues to touch on two of the other bills.

         14                 Regarding Intro. No. 200-0356, for

         15  far too long, taxicabs and for-hire vehicles have

         16  been off limits to persons with mobility impairments

         17  due to a lack of accessible vehicles.

         18                 With only 27 taxicabs, and even fewer

         19  accessible for-hire vehicles in the streets, the

         20  ability of a person with disabilities to actually

         21  get one of those vehicles when they need one is slim

         22  to none.

         23                 The creation of a central dispatch

         24  system, if properly executed, will open up the use

         25  of these vehicles to people with disabilities, by
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          2  making them available on an on-demand basis.

          3                 We believe that a 100 percent

          4  accessible fleet should be the City's ultimate goal,

          5  we recognize that it is something that will take

          6  time to implement.

          7                 As such, we believe it is incumbent

          8  upon the City to develop an interim methodology for

          9  the utilization of these vehicles by persons with

         10  disabilities.

         11                 The creation of a central dispatch

         12  system will go a long way towards achieving the

         13  immediate goal of providing the accessible

         14  transportation for people with disabilities in

         15  demand responsive fashion.

         16                 With only a handful of vehicles on

         17  the road, from a pragmatic perspective, there is no

         18  way that I could stand on a street corner with my

         19  hand out and get a taxicab within a reasonable

         20  period of time.

         21                 The New York City taxicab is iconic

         22  of the City. It's one of the things that tourists,

         23  visitors and other visitors think of when they visit

         24  our City. Yet such vehicles are largely unavailable

         25  for people with disabilities due to a lack of
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          2  accessibility.

          3                 Having one central number that people

          4  with disabilities call if and when they need an

          5  accessible vehicle, changes the entire scenario of

          6  the taxi fleet. These creation of central dispatch

          7  systems in no way prevents someone from giving out

          8  onto a street corner and hailing an accessible cab,

          9  if they can actually find one, which is not going to

         10  happen.

         11                 In other cities around the country,

         12  central dispatch systems have proved effective. They

         13  can work there, they can work in New York City.

         14                 Make no mistake, the introduction of

         15  a central dispatch system for accessible taxicabs

         16  should be no excuse or a reason to delay the

         17  implementation of a fully accessible fleet.

         18                 Rather it should be seen as a

         19  pragmatic interim solution to allow disabled

         20  residents and tourists significantly greater access

         21  to the City.

         22                 Regarding Intro. 2006-378, we are

         23  pleased to endorse this legislation. For far too

         24  long, people with disabilities who live, work or

         25  visit New York City have faced numerous obstacles in
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          2  transportation.

          3                 While the entire City bus fleet has

          4  been accessible since 1993, only 54 of 168 subway

          5  stations are accessible, 27 out of 13,000 taxicabs,

          6  and less than 12 out of more than 25,000 for-hire

          7  vehicles are accessible.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Michael, please wrap

          9  up.

         10                 MR. HARRIS: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We know all those

         12  stats.

         13                 MR. HARRIS: Okay.

         14                 The Coalition recognizes that we

         15  cannot expect to see the number of vehicles,

         16  successful vehicles increase overnight. While in a

         17  utopian society this would happen, we recognize that

         18  we do not live in a utopian society.

         19                 However, a gradual phase-in of the

         20  system will slowly add to people's disability to use

         21  public transportation.

         22                 Just to sum up, the yellow cab is

         23  iconic of this City. Taxicab yellow is not only Matt

         24  Daus's favorite color, it is also emblematic of the

         25  City of New York. But for people with disabilities,
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          2  it has been emblematic of discrimination for way too

          3  long.

          4                 The closest we have been able to get

          5  to a taxicab is a photograph of one we can use. This

          6  legislation goes a long way towards remediating that

          7  problem, and I thank Council Member Koppell for

          8  introducing it, and I'll be happy to take any

          9  questions that you have at this time.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Michael.

         12                 Anne.

         13                 Michael, can you pass the mike over?

         14                 MR. HARRIS: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         16                 MS. EMERMAN: Good afternoon. Anne

         17  Emerman, representing Disabled In Action, and New

         18  York City Chapter of Gray Panthers.

         19                 Some of us have historical memory

         20  about the struggle to get accessible buses, subways,

         21  and certainly it was Assemblyman Koppell. I think

         22  you were on the Transportation Committee at that

         23  time.

         24                 The MTA was describing it as an

         25  expensive folly, and even Mayor Koch went up to
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          2  testify against it, but the State Legislature passed

          3  a law and it happened, and as Terry testified, more

          4  and more people are using it, it's certainly the way

          5  I get around town.

          6                 I want to say we're certainly in

          7  support and appreciate the introduction of 378.

          8                 At the turnover rate of approximately

          9  3,500 cabs a year, there is hope among some of us

         10  that we will see this happening in our lifetime.

         11                 But it does need, a law needs to be

         12  passed. You need a mandate, you need incentives and

         13  you do need even tax credits or tax relief to make

         14  it happen.

         15                 Intro. 90-A has a lot of promise. The

         16  one in ten is not an unreasonable ratio, but there

         17  is no phase-in timetable here, and without that, I

         18  don't think anything is going to happen.

         19                 I do have a lot of concern and

         20  caution around 356. I cannot imagine, and I can't

         21  even imagine a TLC charged with putting together a

         22  system of a central dispatching system. TLC has

         23  never been friendly to the concept of accessible

         24  vehicles, and I don't see them making it happen. It

         25  just doesn't seem realistic. And the rest you can
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          2  read.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          4  Anne. Thank you.

          5                 Andrew, are you going to testify?

          6                 MS. JAMES: Janice Bartley

          7  communicates through a light writer, and she wanted

          8  me to explain that her testimony is preprogrammed,

          9  and so she can't cut the length.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, Andrew,

         11  just hold on for a second, we'll take this testimony

         12  first. Thank you.

         13                 Before we play that, Miss, could you

         14  identify yourself for the record again, and then

         15  identify.

         16                 MS. JAMES: I'm testifying separately.

         17  My name is Cathy James and this is Janice Bartley.

         18  She will introduce herself.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         20                 MS. BARTLEY: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Janice Bartley. I work for the Self-Advocacy

         22  Association of New York State, as the team leader of

         23  the Americorps program. If I may, let me give a

         24  brief summary of how the Self-Advocacy Association

         25  of New York State began. The Self-Advocacy
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          2  Association of New York State was founded in 1986 by

          3  Bernard Carabello, who was an inmate at the

          4  Willowbrook Institution. After

          5  deinstitutionalization, people with disabilities

          6  began to move back to their communities and found

          7  themselves unwelcome.

          8                 It is sad to say, people with a

          9  disability are considered to be outcasts and don't

         10  have a place in society. Just because our brain

         11  works differently we are still capable of having a

         12  productive life, just like any other person. I want

         13  to be seen as a bright, intelligent and of course a

         14  sexy woman. I want it to be known to society, people

         15  with disabilities are here to stay and we are not

         16  going anywhere.

         17                 I am here today to share with you the

         18  obstacles, frustrations, stress, lack of

         19  understanding and attitudes that people with

         20  disabilities are faced with everyday due to lack of

         21  accessibility in the community. One of the biggest

         22  issues keeping people with a disability from going

         23  out in the community and living a productive life is

         24  the lack of accessible transportation.

         25                 It is sad to say, people with
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          2  disabilities (particularly those that use

          3  wheelchairs and walkers), have really one means of

          4  transportation to get around if we need to go a far

          5  distance.

          6                 We have to rely on Access-A-Ride.

          7  There have been many times when I have been stranded

          8  due to problems with Access-A-Ride transportation. I

          9  can't express to you how frustrated I get when this

         10  happens. The times when I have been stranded by

         11  Access-A-Ride, we would call 3-1-1 to see if we

         12  could get an accessible cab, they advised you to

         13  stand on a street corner in the Bronx and wait for

         14  an accessible cab. There are only 30 in the whole

         15  City, so I don't think that's very realistic, do

         16  you?

         17                 This makes me feel like people just

         18  don't get it. For most people in New York City, a

         19  cab is always an option if all else fails. I am

         20  happy to pay for a taxi but I don't have the option

         21  to take one if I need to. I am sure other people

         22  with disabilities feel the same way like I do.

         23                 I could talk all day about the

         24  problems that I and other people had with

         25  Access-A-Ride, like getting stranded, put down as a
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          2  no show, waiting an hour or more for them to arrive,

          3  being late to work or to an appointment because the

          4  drivers have to make other pick-ups, or they don't

          5  know where the hell they are going, the ill-mannered

          6  drivers, and the rudeness of the operators when you

          7  call to make a reservation. I tell you this because

          8  I want you to know that people are stuck. The one

          9  service that is supposed to help us get around is

         10  totally unreliable.

         11                 I wanted to be here today to have a

         12  chance to express my feelings on why is there a

         13  dying need for more accessible taxis. Right now,

         14  there are less than one percent of accessible taxis

         15  in New York City. How would it make you feel if you

         16  always worried about, are you going to get to and

         17  from your destination, or you always have to make

         18  transportation arrangements two days in advance, and

         19  you are limited to places where you could go to?

         20                 I know accessible taxis are a little

         21  bit more costly, but you would be helping people

         22  with disabilities have more options, and a chance to

         23  be part of the community and have a productive life

         24  as any other person in society. Surely that is worth

         25  investing in. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          3  Ms. Bartley, for that testimony.

          4                 Ms. James, do you have something to

          5  add to that? I need to ask you to please comply.

          6                 MS. JAMES: My name is Catherine

          7  James. I work for the Self-Advocacy Association of

          8  New York State. This is a not-for-profit

          9  organization, run by and for people with

         10  developmental disabilities. The Association was

         11  founded by a group of individuals, many of whom

         12  spent their earlier lives living in squalor at the

         13  Willowbrook State School in Staten Island.

         14                 As they moved out of the institution

         15  and into their neighborhoods, there was a

         16  realization that many barriers stood between

         17  themselves and true and equal participation in

         18  community life. Accessible transportation goes to

         19  the heart of this inequity. The problems with

         20  Access-A-Ride have been well documented and so

         21  there's no need to mention them here, only to

         22  reiterate that the paratransit system we have in

         23  place is inherently flawed and a source of daily

         24  frustration to many.

         25                 The current availability of
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          2  accessible cars in both the areas of for-hire

          3  vehicles and taxis is vastly inadequate. In our

          4  office, the accessible yellow cab has been nicknamed

          5  the unicorn due to the lack of reported sightings.

          6  It is a mythical beast.

          7                 The five or six livery companies we

          8  contacted by phone all assured us they had

          9  accessible cars. However, when we called back in our

         10  hour of need, it turned out that this was actually

         11  untrue in every single case. Their idea of

         12  accessible meant that the passenger was required to

         13  be able to transfer into the back seat so the

         14  wheelchair could be folded and stored in the trunk.

         15  Is it any wonder that people stopped calling these

         16  companies?

         17                 It is not hyperbole to state that if

         18  New York City had a law requiring a reasonable

         19  percentage of accessible vehicles in its cab fleet,

         20  it could truly change the reality for thousands and

         21  thousands of people.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         23                 Ms. Andrew Kurzweil. Mr. Andrew

         24  Kurzweil.

         25                 Push the button again.
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          2                 MR. KURZWEIL: I'd just like to add

          3  I'm also the Brooklyn representative to the TLC

          4  Disability Advisory Committee. I'm speaking on 90-A.

          5  We need something like this because 6.07(f) has

          6  failed miserably, and that's because the contracts,

          7  they've been contracting double and -- base

          8  contracts would place, and five bases wind up

          9  contracting with the same -- with the place that has

         10  five accessible vehicles, can't service it, too far

         11  away, and just impossible.

         12                 In regards to 355. Disabled Riders

         13  Coalition is in favor of it due to points of --

         14  okay.

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: May I? Just to

         16  quickly summarize what he's trying to make the point

         17  about with regards to 335 -- 355, was we repeatedly

         18  stressed the Coalition supports the utilization of

         19  fuel-efficient vehicles. However, they're largely

         20  unaccessible. The mandate that the TLC works to

         21  provide and to find accessible fuel-efficient

         22  vehicle, benefits not only the environment and the

         23  disabled, but the drivers.

         24                 Because I don't know how many of you

         25  know this, but there is an $8,000 federal tax credit
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          2  available for every fuel efficient accessible

          3  vehicle purchase. Therefore, it benefits the owners

          4  as well. And just quickly regarding 6.07(f) which

          5  does not work, as Les Jacob said, he contracts with

          6  134 bases with four vehicles serving throughout the

          7  City out of Long Island City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That does not

         10  work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         12                 Thank you, Andrew. Thank you,

         13  Michael. Thank you, Anne. Especially thank you, Ms.

         14  Bartley, for testifying today.

         15                 Our next panel consists of

         16  representatives of the industry, Victor Dizengoff,

         17  Vincent Sapon, Joseph Gionetto, David Pollack and

         18  Arthur Goldstein.

         19                 They will be followed by another

         20  panel of activists, and I apologize to this panel,

         21  because I had called them up earlier. Florence

         22  Craddock, Matt Shotkin and Jean Ryan.

         23                 Thank you, Victor, for joining us.

         24  Proceed when you're ready.

         25                 All right, Victor, please proceed.
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          2                 MR. DIZENGOFF: All right, Chairman

          3  Liu, members of the Transportation Committee. My

          4  name is Victor Dizengoff. I'm the Executive Director

          5  and a member of the Board of Directors of Black Car

          6  Assistance Corporation, which is a trade association

          7  for the Black Car industry.

          8                 I'm also the Executive Director of

          9  the New York Car Operators Injury Compensation Fund.

         10  The BCAC represents in excess of 100 companies which

         11  have approximately 10,000 affiliated vehicles.

         12                 To the extent that we represent the

         13  companies, we are concerned with the drivers' issues

         14  as well. As stated previously, I'm also the

         15  Executive Director of New York Black Car Operators

         16  Injury Compensation Fund, a fund established by

         17  statute and signed into law by Governor Pataki in

         18  1999 for the express purpose of providing workers

         19  compensation insurance to the black car drivers.

         20                 Black Car Industry has since its

         21  inception, and continues to be, an industry

         22  regulated by the New York City Taxi and Limousine

         23  Commission. Our primary concern in addition to the

         24  quality services we provide our clients, has always

         25  been and continues to be their safety, the safety of
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          2  our drivers, and the safety of all citizens of New

          3  York, its visitors and commuters.

          4                 The Board of Directors of the BCAC

          5  having met in session unanimously agreed that the

          6  passage of Intro. 356 into law would jeopardize the

          7  foundation of the Black Car Industry and the

          8  well-being of the taxicab riders throughout the

          9  City.

         10                 The Black Car Industry was created

         11  subsequent to the removal of two-way radios from

         12  yellow medallion taxicabs. Two-way radios were

         13  removed as a result of a resolution passed by the

         14  then City Council which directed that two-way radios

         15  be removed from yellow medallion taxicabs over a

         16  period, over a two-year attrition period from

         17  February of 1985 until March of 1987.

         18                 So as to enlighten you who weren't on

         19  the City Council at that time, and I think that's

         20  pretty much everybody, and those that might not be

         21  aware of what happened during that period prior to

         22  the removal of two-way radios from yellow medallion

         23  taxicabs, I'll attempt to give you some history,

         24  albeit an abridged version. I've got very little to

         25  go.
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          2                 With two-way radios in yellow cabs

          3  and the on radio call signs attached to their roof

          4  lights, pedestrians in their vain attempt to hail

          5  taxicabs were being passed up continuously by on

          6  radio call taxicabs, either on the way to more

          7  lucrative radio calls, or just illegally using their

          8  on radio call sign to discriminate against potential

          9  fares.

         10                 The objective of removing the two-way

         11  radios from yellow medallion taxicabs was to free up

         12  the taxicabs --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right. Victor, --

         14                 MR. DIZENGOFF: I got four lines.

         15                 To free up the taxicabs to perform

         16  the function they're intended to perform, which is

         17  to service the street hail.

         18                 Local Law 51 of 1996 created and

         19  defined the existing for-hire vehicle industry, and

         20  left the yellow medallion industry as the only

         21  segment of the ground transportation industry having

         22  exclusive rights to street hail.

         23                 Thank you very much. Be glad to

         24  answer any questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for the
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          2  history lesson.

          3                 Mr. Sapon.

          4                 MR. DIZENGOFF: That's why I'm here.

          5  Forty-five years in the industry, I should remember.

          6                 I also have, in case --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Sapon, you were

          8  on the right track. Take that mike.

          9                 MR. SAPON: He's bigger than I am.

         10                 Anyway, good afternoon. A long

         11  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, City Council members. Thank

         12  you for giving me the opportunity to talk.

         13                 I represent the League of Medallion

         14  Taxi Owners. It's a group of approximately 4,200

         15  strong. The 95 percent are drivers that drive one

         16  medallion, and they own it themselves and they drive

         17  it. The other five percent are lease drivers.

         18                 You know, I believe in clean air,

         19  too, but we gotta really work on this to see which

         20  is the best way. I believe in helping the handicap

         21  people. My mother was in a wheelchair, but in those

         22  days we didn't have a 350 pound scooter, they

         23  wheeled in the wheelchair, called a cab, put her in

         24  and that was it. You know, it wasn't a monster

         25  scooter. Today we need a truck, and no disrespect to
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          2  anybody. Anyway, and we made it work. We made it

          3  work. We put the thing in the truck, and that was

          4  it, you know, no problem. The driver helped her out,

          5  put her in there, she went in the store.

          6                 Anyway, what I gotta say is, you

          7  gotta read this, I'm not going to read all this,

          8  because it's not boring, but I know there's time

          9  here.

         10                 David wants to talk. He's kicking me

         11  under the table.

         12                 Anyway, I blame you guys, the guys

         13  before you, okay? And the guys, the one at TLC

         14  before. Because this is a long, drawn out affair

         15  here. Now all of a sudden what you guys want to do

         16  is tell me, tell your people you're going to have to

         17  buy a $40,000 vehicle. Tell your people go look for

         18  insurance, which there isn't any. How are they going

         19  to exist? We are the small business man. The average

         20  guy makes 40, 55,000 dollars a year, he doesn't own

         21  millions of cabs, no disrespect to anybody. You are

         22  going to put the burden on the owner/driver and he

         23  will be out of business in six years or seven years.

         24  Mark my words.

         25                 You know, we have the best taxi
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          2  industry in the world. Everyone comes to us, so Matt

          3  Daus says, you know, and they ask him for advice and

          4  they follow his rules, you cannot destroy the small

          5  business man. Like you take myself, I work two jobs

          6  to buy my medallion. I put down $50,000, today you

          7  need 40, okay? And I made it work. Now you're coming

          8  along and you're telling me to get $20,000

          9  insurance, a $40,000 car that I don't know if it's

         10  going to last, okay? For only five years. None of

         11  these cars have been tested.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right, Mr.

         13  Sapon, your point is well taken.

         14                 MR. SAPON: I hope you guys --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We do. And let me

         16  say that you are as good in person as you are over

         17  the radio.

         18                 Joseph Gionnetto.

         19                 MR. GIANNETTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair,

         20  members of the Committee. My name is Joseph

         21  Giannetto, and I am Director of Business Development

         22  for the Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade, which

         23  is a 54-year-old trade association representing 19

         24  fleet garages with approximately 2,600 yellow

         25  medallion taxicabs.
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          2                 MTBOT has worked closely with the

          3  Council and the TLC on ways to improve wheelchair

          4  accessibility and encourage alternative taxicabs. We

          5  look forward to continuing that dialogue. However,

          6  today, and in the interest of time, we're compelled

          7  to spend the majority of our testimony cautioning

          8  against the onerous and unnecessary mandates put

          9  forth in two bills, Intro. 378 and 158-A.

         10                 Intro 378 makes assumptions about the

         11  durability, cost and overall feasibility of

         12  wheelchair accessible taxicabs that directly

         13  contradict actual experience. It mandates that all

         14  taxis become wheelchair accessible, yet there are

         15  only two vehicles that currently meet TLC specs, and

         16  neither are on the road today as taxis.

         17                 Just this year, as you know, the TLC

         18  ruled that it will no longer accept the wheelchair

         19  accessible Ford Freestar, the model of all 27

         20  current wheelchair accessible taxicabs, citing poor

         21  durability, mechanical problems and safety-related

         22  issues. What's more, accessible vehicles over the

         23  lifespan of the vehicle cost almost twice as much as

         24  Crown Victorias and insurance is expected to be much

         25  higher than any traditional policy.
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          2                 Now, this bill would first impose a

          3  mandate for prohibitively expensive vehicles that

          4  bear more similarities to the failed Freestar than

          5  to the proven Crown Vic, and it wrongly looks to the

          6  hail-only yellow taxi industry to solve a citywide,

          7  multi-borough issue of wheelchair accessible

          8  transportation. Then, notwithstanding the Chairman's

          9  comments earlier, it goes a step further and

         10  mandates that a vehicle, mandates a vehicle that

         11  doesn't appear to exist, and that's the hybrid

         12  wheelchair accessible taxicab.

         13                 Another bill, Intro. 158-A

         14  effectively kills the proven workhorse of the taxi

         15  industry, the stretch Crown Victoria, by slashing

         16  its replacement cycle from three years to 18 months.

         17  What this actually does is very alarming. It

         18  proposes to kill a vehicle with a 5-star federal

         19  safety rating used by more than 90 percent of taxi

         20  operators and that has proven to withstand the

         21  rigors of New York City streets in double-shifted

         22  24/7 operations and that is large enough to provide

         23  a high standard of comfort. And then it proposes to

         24  replace them with a wide variety of

         25  just-off-the-line hybrids that range from small to
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          2  smaller and are completely untested in New York City

          3  taxicabs, but perhaps most alarming, it doesn't

          4  provide for a safety partition.

          5                 In closing, I would just like to

          6  remind the Council that, you know, we were

          7  supportive of Intro. 339 which provided for choice

          8  rather than a mandate. And if there is anything I

          9  want to say in this testimony, in the interest of

         10  time, that's the point I want to come across.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         13  can I ask this witness a question?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If we changed

         16  158 and we left the rules relating to the Crown

         17  Victoria, which I believe are three years alone, and

         18  only had the incentive part that said if you get one

         19  of these accessible vehicles, you could use it for

         20  five years. I know you say you don't know if it will

         21  last for five years, but if we left alone the

         22  current requirement so that it would be a choice,

         23  but there would be an incentive, which people could

         24  or could not take advantage of their choice; would

         25  that be okay?
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          2                 MR. GIANNETTO: I'm going to answer

          3  yes. We testified earlier to that that as long as

          4  there is no disincentive to the Crown Victoria, we

          5  are in support of incentives for the other vehicles.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think

          7  that's an approach, Mr. Chairman, we ought to

          8  explore.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I would agree with

         10  you.

         11                 Mr. Pollack.

         12                 MR. POLLACK: My name is David Pollack

         13  from the Committee for Taxi Safety.

         14                 I'll skip the first paragraph. We

         15  applaud Intro 90-A and firmly believe the disabled

         16  community is best served if neighborhood FJV car

         17  services are required to comply with this intro

         18  adding wheelchair accessible vehicles as members of

         19  the disabled community mentioned here today.

         20                 We'd like to see more wheelchair

         21  accessible vehicles in the FHV industry so they can

         22  do what they do best, service their neighborhoods.

         23                 The Committee applauds Intro. 158-A

         24  for incentives, but there seem to be disincentives

         25  here, reducing the life span on most of the
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          2  vehicles. All of the current hybrids available for

          3  purchase do not allow for a partition, this is a

          4  serious liability issue for agents and fleets before

          5  the partition mandate drivers were being killed,

          6  it's something that we need to keep in mind.

          7                 When a vehicle is produced, that is

          8  both a hybrid and can fit a partition, I feel

          9  confident that this industry will purchase these

         10  vehicles in bulk, and we urge your understanding

         11  that taxis not only better the public interest, but

         12  you must consider the safety of the taxi driver.

         13  Longer road incentives are necessary. Absolutely.

         14  And this intro may be better served when a hybrid

         15  vehicle that allows a partition gets higher mileage

         16  or durable is available. Personally, no such vehicle

         17  exists.

         18                 3-1-1 versus dispatch. I don't

         19  understand if the public is supposed to call 3-1-1

         20  or supposed to call a dispatch center, but

         21  dispatched yellow taxis will primarily serve the

         22  disabled in Manhattan at the airports, and that

         23  should be noted. I don't really see how yellow cabs

         24  will have a large impact in other places.

         25                 You can read the rest of my intro,
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          2  but we need to have additional -- you know, speaking

          3  100 miles an hour in two minutes doesn't really

          4  accomplish what we need to accomplish.

          5                 I think if we have additional

          6  meetings for informational purposes, it will better

          7  serve all parties.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          9                 I don't think you had difficulty

         10  getting additional meetings.

         11                 Arthur, are you testifying today?

         12  Okay, please proceed to the table. Are you going to

         13  say the same thing? Because we heard it already.

         14                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Arthur Goldstein,

         15  representing Taxicab Service Association, which is a

         16  group of credit unions that have a billion dollars

         17  of loans on the street, so they care deeply about

         18  policies that affect the taxi industry.

         19                 First I'd like to thank the staff. We

         20  feel like we've been heard in the series of meetings

         21  we've had. We still think there's a little ways to

         22  go but I think we're making some real progress here.

         23                 Actually TSA believes in incentives,

         24  not mandates. We think Intro. 378 is premature. We

         25  need to allow for other technologies to come forth.
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          2                 We think the whole for-hire industry

          3  must be examined and treated fairly. That's every

          4  part of it, car services, black cars and yellows.

          5                 Vehicles have to be durable and safe,

          6  partitions are absolutely necessary. On the dispatch

          7  system, it's something we've been talking about for

          8  a long time, but we don't think the language holds

          9  you to just possibly having a phone system in place.

         10  There are other technologies, text messaging, et

         11  cetera, that might be necessary, and there are

         12  certain issues that will have to be dealt with,

         13  maybe not in the legislation but there ought to be a

         14  recognition of it early on. Cab driver stops to get

         15  a passenger, and any electronic system that's

         16  looking at that cab at that moment in time will not

         17  know that the cab driver is loading some suitcases,

         18  and may think that that cab driver is free to

         19  respond to a radio call.

         20                 So, there would have to be a system

         21  in place, I'm not sure what that is yet, but some

         22  sort of signal that they've just gotten someone,

         23  they just haven't started the meeting yet.

         24                 It gets technical, but there are

         25  things like that that we'd have to deal with.
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          2                 To respond to your comment about

          3  blurred lines, normally we would agree with you 100

          4  percent, but we think there's a public necessity for

          5  moving forward and not caring this time about the

          6  blurred line.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Interesting. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 MR. KAY: My name is Richard Kay. I'm

         10  the Treasurer of the Taxicab Service Association and

         11  CEO of the LOMTO federal credit union. I'm very

         12  concerned about some of these bills, and before Mr.

         13  Koppell leaves, I'd just like to compliment him on

         14  something that he said, and that was about the

         15  disincentive on the Ford Crown Victoria. If you take

         16  that away, it changes the whole scope of that

         17  particular bill, and it's not nearly as

         18  objectionable, and we could live with that.

         19                 And I'm not against hybrids. My

         20  biggest problem with hybrids right now is that they

         21  really have not been on the road long enough to be

         22  tested properly. One of the major problems that the

         23  taxi industry has had forever is durability of

         24  vehicles.

         25                 We've had some vehicles through the
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          2  years that have held up better than others. The ones

          3  that don't hold up cost the owners a tremendous

          4  amount of money. It costs the drivers a tremendous

          5  amount of money. The drivers lose time when the cars

          6  break down. The owners pay the bills, the drivers

          7  don't make any money. If the hybrids don't hold up,

          8  we have a major problem. If they only last four

          9  years instead of five years, we have another major

         10  problem.

         11                 We have a lot of loans out. The

         12  credit unions have participated with the City in the

         13  recent auctions, we've put out a lot of money in

         14  loans. The City made a lot of money from those

         15  loans. These are federally insured credit unions,

         16  and these are small business people who put their

         17  money into these credit unions and depend on us to

         18  be there.

         19                 There could be a tremendous financial

         20  impact on the credit unions and the members of the

         21  credit unions, which amounts to many, many thousands

         22  of people, including the drivers/owners. My credit

         23  union represents individual owner/drivers who are

         24  not multi-millionairs, they're not even

         25  millionaires, they're not even close to that. I
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          2  could go on and on about this, but one other point

          3  about it --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No.

          5                 MR. KAY: Well, I have a lot of good

          6  points to make and there's no way in two or three

          7  minutes that I could get even close to saying what

          8  I'd like to say.

          9                 But one point --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But you've stated

         11  your positions on the bills.

         12                 MR. KAY: Could I get a couple of

         13  extra seconds, because Mr. Koppell stole some of my

         14  time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         16                 MR. KAY: But if I could only make one

         17  more point, and I'm not even getting into the

         18  handicap, because there is no time, the problem that

         19  I see, the biggest problem of all is safety.

         20                 Now, some people have touched on it,

         21  but there is not a hybrid car out there that you can

         22  put a partition in. And I've been in this industry

         23  over 30 years, and I remember when drivers had been

         24  killed every year. Fidel DeValle was the Chairman of

         25  the TLC when he mandated that partitions go into all
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          2  cabs because in taxicabs and for-hire vehicles, in

          3  one year 90 people were killed. Ninety. How could

          4  any of us live with the blood of those people on our

          5  hands, if that ever happened again?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          7                 MR. KAY: That's all I have to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          9                 We have still a number of people to

         10  testify. I know that people, there are some people

         11  who have to get to their travel appointments. Let me

         12  call up the next panel of advocates from the

         13  differently-abled community. Florence Craddick, Matt

         14  Shotkin and Jean Ryan. Please proceed to the witness

         15  table.

         16                 And Jean, you missed before, but you

         17  were in the very first panel that I called up. For

         18  two reasons: Number one, there have been so many

         19  hearings where you waited patiently, so I made a

         20  point to call you up first; and secondly, because

         21  you were going to testify in opposition, so we felt

         22  --

         23                 MS. RYAN: Thank you so much. But I

         24  got stuck on the bus.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.
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          2                 MS. RYAN: And there wasn't any other

          3  way to get here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right, Ms.

          5  Craddock.

          6                 MS. CRADDOCK: Okay, thank you. I've

          7  been doing this a long time. I don't think I will be

          8  able to be at another meeting like this, and it's

          9  discouraging to think that I have been doing this

         10  for so many years, and we are no further than we

         11  were at the first. And also the fact is that the

         12  buses, I went through the buses, and they improved.

         13  Why can't you do the same? A lot of rhetoric and get

         14  nowhere. It would be appreciated if we could see

         15  some improvements.

         16                 With the time going by, how long is

         17  this panel going to take to wind up in the same

         18  place they were ten, 15 years ago.

         19                 I will not be here when you do get a

         20  taxi, and I have been out in the rain and in the

         21  heat praying that I could get on a taxi that was

         22  passing me by, so I could either get to the doctor

         23  or get home.

         24                 I won't be able to do this much

         25  longer. This I will not do at all. And before I'm
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          2  not able to know it at all, I would love to see that

          3  you got an accessible taxi for us. And that's what I

          4  want to say.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, thank you very

          6  much, being to the point.

          7                 MS. CRADDOCK: Oh, you want to know

          8  how old I am?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I know how old you

         10  are.

         11                 MS. CRADDOCK: How?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You're sixty-two.

         13                 MS. CRADDOCK: I'm sixty-two? You

         14  wish.

         15                 I'm 84.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Wow.

         17                 MS. CRADDOCK: And I'm doing this

         18  through the buses and through everything. You think

         19  I have time to do this again? I don't think so. And

         20  thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The point is taken.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 Mr. Shotkin.

         24                 MR. SHOTKIN: I'm going to decline and

         25  save the best for last and turn it over to her
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          2  first.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Exactly what does

          4  that mean? That means you're not going to testify,

          5  right?

          6                 Jean, why don't you go ahead. Yes,

          7  that's fine.

          8                 MS. RYAN: Well, you know I'm June

          9  Ryan. I'm Second Vice President for Public Affairs

         10  of DIA and Vice Chair of the Taxis For All Campaign,

         11  of which DIA is a founding member.

         12                 We all know wheelchair and scooter

         13  users have a desperate and long-standing need for

         14  wheelchair accessible taxis and livery services.

         15  Some of these bills will go a long way toward

         16  getting us usable transportation, and others will do

         17  nothing or serve to delay progress in this goal.

         18                 TFAC, that's Taxis For All Campaign,

         19  and its member organizations, is strongly in favor

         20  of Intro. 378, the bill that Council Member Koppell

         21  has introduced, which is a revised version of our

         22  bill but will gradually lead to 100 percent

         23  accessible and green taxis as they need to be

         24  replaced or are sold.

         25                 This is the only way we will be able
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          2  to stick out our hand and yell taxi and get a ride,

          3  like other people do. We are strongly against Intro.

          4  356, the separate and unequal call-in system,

          5  Access-A-Ride, Jr. Until a huge percentage of the

          6  cabs are wheelchair accessible, we will still not be

          7  able to reliably get a ride.

          8                 That is the solution, getting cabs.

          9  Few people, but the most desperate, are going to

         10  call for a cab in hopes that one might show up

         11  eventually, because a cab can first pick up a street

         12  hail easily and quickly. Besides, look who would be

         13  setting up the system.

         14                 TLC, which has already failed

         15  miserably with the Black Car Symphony, which they

         16  said was a test, but they never publicly put it into

         17  practice. A Ride For All, which the TLC and moped

         18  promised we would love, they were going to do this

         19  for us. They wouldn't let us get involved. They

         20  wouldn't even tell us about it until it happened.

         21  But it takes two weeks to book a ride. It took two

         22  weeks to book a ride before they got all those

         23  contracts, and the for-hire vehicle accessibility

         24  rule that the TLC said would provide equivalent,

         25  quote, equivalent service, but definitely does not.
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          2                 On their website, the TLC says, and I

          3  quote, "Would you like to request demand responsive

          4  wheelchair accessible service? Please feel free to

          5  contact the licensed for-hire vehicle base of your

          6  choice."

          7                 It then lists 39, count them, 39

          8  pages of hundreds of bases that you know we are

          9  invited to call to try to get a ride. No thanks. Do

         10  we want them running a taxi call-in system?

         11                 Ambulatory people do not have to call

         12  a special taxi number to get a cab, and neither

         13  should we.

         14                 I've said before that finding an

         15  accessible cab is like an Elvis sighting. Well, if

         16  the taxi I called from the call system ever came to

         17  Bay Ridge to pick me up, it would be so rare that

         18  Elvis would probably be driving it.

         19                 Taxis For All and DIA are for Intro.

         20  90-A, the accessible for-hire vehicle bill, with a

         21  few changes we would like to work on with you,

         22  especially the one accessible car for every ten

         23  cars. How about one accessible car for every nine

         24  cars, then we'd have one in ten cars.

         25                 Yes, we need more accessible
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          2  transportation options, especially in the outer

          3  boroughs. We're not in favor of pitting

          4  accessibility against hybrid taxis, and we think

          5  that 158 might end up doing that, because if you

          6  have a choice, you're going to buy the cheaper car.

          7                 Taxis that are both would be better

          8  for everyone's health and usable by everyone. Thank

          9  you so much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         11  Jean.

         12                 MR. SHOTKIN: Good afternoon. I'm

         13  going to slightly adjust the first sentence of my

         14  testimony 'cause I thought I was going to be

         15  testifying before the General Counsel next door, but

         16  obviously that's not the case, because Chairman Liu

         17  doesn't look anything like the Madam Speaker, so --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, well, please,

         19  you have a minute and a half left.

         20                 MR. SHOTKIN: Good afternoon, and I

         21  just wanted to introduce myself. My name is Matt

         22  Shotkin. I represent the Center for the Independence

         23  of the Disabled of New York and Disabled In Action.

         24  Regarding the Disabled Taxi bill, Intro. 90-A, I

         25  think it will be very beneficial for at least 150
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          2  more tax medallions to be put into service into

          3  order to decrease disabled people's waiting time. In

          4  addition, it will make the disabled less tired, so

          5  less for taxis. This would make perfect sense for

          6  these, and the people can wait up to two hours or

          7  more right now for an Access-A-Ride. And if the

          8  Mayor can push across bills like a proposed decrease

          9  in jury (sic) and various other funding, he could

         10  certainly do this, and the base station owns at

         11  least ten cars right now, according to the City

         12  mandate, the industry is indeed moving along at a

         13  very swift pace going forward toward the 21st

         14  century as far as I could see. TLC has indeed made

         15  progress as far as the taxi fleets go, they do pick

         16  up hails on the actual street, and I've witnessed it

         17  with my own eyes, and I just want this testimony to

         18  be put into the record for the Chairman of Mental

         19  Health Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We do

         21  have your testimony. Thanks for joining us this

         22  afternoon.

         23                 We have two more panels to go, and we

         24  do need to vacate this room soon, because there is

         25  another meeting that's waiting to come in.
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          2                 Bob Muldoon from the Sierra Club.

          3  Patrick Centolanzi, also from the Sierra Club.

          4  Yerina Musica, from NRDC, and Bart Chezar from --

          5  oh, Bart Chezar. Please approach the witness table.

          6                 And following them will be the final

          7  panel. And I want to thank the final person to

          8  testify, I want to thank him for his patience today,

          9  Dennis Foerschler.

         10                 Please proceed, Bob.

         11                 MR. MULDOON: Bob Muldoon, Associate

         12  Regional Representative with the National Sierra

         13  Club Field Office in New York City.

         14                 Sierra Club is a national grassroots

         15  environmental organization.

         16                 I want to thank the Committee for

         17  holding this hearing to evaluate a series of

         18  proposals on clean air taxis and accessible taxis.

         19  I'm going to focus on some of the clean air taxi

         20  bills, since that's our main focus, environmental.

         21                 We're very excited about the progress

         22  with the hybrid vehicles. We've gotten positive

         23  feedback from the cabbis on the initial batch, and

         24  what's important to keep in mind is among the

         25  initial batch of hybrid taxis out there, some were
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          2  purchased by owners of regular medallions. So, we're

          3  noting that taxi drivers are realizing that they can

          4  save money at the pump while reducing pollution and

          5  reducing our reliance on foreign oil.

          6                 With the Mayor and City Council

          7  recently agreeing on dedicating 254 of the 308 new

          8  medallions being sold this month, we're hopeful that

          9  New York City will soon be on the way to a fleet of

         10  almost 300 clean-air taxis by the fall. But these

         11  bills are important to keep us moving in that

         12  direction.

         13                 With regard to the bills before us

         14  today, we're in favor of Intros 37, 352, 353 and

         15  361. We support these bills with the qualification

         16  that the Council should require a standard of

         17  improvement and fuel efficiency for hybrid electric

         18  vehicles, in order to achieve a level of improvement

         19  in air quality. And we'll follow up with Council

         20  staff on this concern to help you develop such

         21  ideas, if that's what you want to pursue.

         22                 For Intro. 353, which would require

         23  labeling clean air taxis, the Committee may want to

         24  consider expanding those to the rest of the for-hire

         25  fleet. And with regards to Intro. 150-A, we're still
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          2  evaluating the bill and developing a position, but

          3  we look forward to following up with the Committee

          4  on that bill and all the bills that you're

          5  reviewing.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

          8  very much. Is Patrick going to testify today? Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Yerina Musica, from the Natural

         11  Resources Defense Council.

         12                 MS. MUSICA: Thank you.

         13                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and

         14  members of the Committee. My name is Yerina Musica.

         15  I'm a Research Associate with the Natural Resources

         16  Defense Council, which as you know, has been

         17  actively involved in New York City clean air, energy

         18  and public health issues for over 30 years.

         19                 Thank you, Council Member Liu, as

         20  Chairman of this Committee, and Council Member

         21  Yassky and Gennaro, especially for your longstanding

         22  commitment to clean air issues.

         23                 I'm going to speak specifically today

         24  on five bills, Intros 37, 158-A, 352, 353 and 361.

         25  This set of bills provides a strong combination of
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          2  incentives to increase the number of clean air taxis

          3  and for-hire vehicles on the road in New York City.

          4  NRDC supports these bills, and we offer a few

          5  recommendations to further strengthen this set of

          6  bills.

          7                 The first recommendation relates to

          8  refining the definition of hybrid electric vehicle.

          9  Intro. 352 and 361 define hybrid electric vehicle as

         10  commercially available mass production vehicle,

         11  originally put by the manufacturer with a combustion

         12  engine together with an electric propulsion system

         13  that operates in an integrated manner.

         14                 This definition does not preclude a

         15  highly polluting vehicle that happens to be equipped

         16  with an electric propulsion system to qualify for

         17  the incentives designated in these bills.

         18                 Clearly, it's not the intent of the

         19  City Council to promote vehicles that do not reduce

         20  air pollution or provide other benefits, and to

         21  safeguard against doing just that, we recommend

         22  refining the definition and more strictly definition

         23  hybrid electric vehicles.

         24                 We'd be happy to provide more

         25  information on that in writing at a future date.
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          2                 Our second comment is in regards to

          3  Intro. 158-A. This bill appropriately extends the

          4  retirement data of the most efficient vehicles and

          5  NRDC strongly supports this provision.

          6                 Also, given the considerable benefits

          7  of hybrid electric vehicles that have City mileage

          8  between 44 and 29 miles per gallon, we recommend

          9  extending the retirement data of these vehicles to

         10  48 months for taxicabs that are double shifted, and

         11  60 months for all other vehicles.

         12                 In addition, we recognize concerns

         13  over reducing the retirement date of conventional

         14  vehicles, and we also have concerns with this

         15  provision.

         16                 We're committed to working with the

         17  City Council to develop a solution that both

         18  addresses these concerns and continues to meet the

         19  goals to significantly increase clean air taxis in

         20  New York City.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         22                 Mr. Chezar.

         23                 MR. CHEZAR: Thank you. My name is

         24  Bart Chezar. I am a transportation consultant. I

         25  spent half my life in the development and
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          2  demonstration of electric and hybrid electric

          3  technologies. I have worked with the organizations

          4  here, with the views I expressed of my own. In the

          5  next couple of months we're going to have over 300

          6  hybrid electric taxicabs in service in New York

          7  City. We're going to learn a tremendous amount about

          8  the operation of these vehicles in service, we're

          9  going to learn what their costs are, what their fuel

         10  savings are, and perhaps, most importantly, we're

         11  going to find out about the ability of these

         12  vehicles to the fleet owners, the drivers, and the

         13  customers.

         14                 The only thing we can do that I think

         15  is significant in encouraging the number of taxicabs

         16  that are out on the street, are to provide an

         17  extension in the period of time that they're allowed

         18  in service.

         19                 Most of the other incentives are

         20  probably not going to be enough to move the

         21  industry. Intro. 158-A is the only one that does

         22  provide this incentive and that is very important

         23  and that could be critical in getting more hybrids

         24  on the street.

         25                 There is one big however. The
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          2  disincentive for those non-hybrids is significant in

          3  reducing the period of time that they could remain

          4  in service, and essentially forces all taxicabs to

          5  be hybrids.

          6                 I don't think that's a good strategy.

          7  I think the people that get incentives and want to

          8  have hybrids out there should be people who want

          9  them. I don't think we want people who do not want

         10  those vehicles to be forced to have them.

         11                 I think once we prove that the fuel

         12  efficiencies, what we expect, that the performance

         13  is equal to what's out there, we will be moving very

         14  quickly to filling the marketplace with these

         15  vehicles.

         16                 One final thing is almost every month

         17  now there is a new vehicle being announced that will

         18  be hybrid electric vehicles. We know that the ones

         19  out there today are not ideal. I'm fairly confident

         20  within the next year we will see better ones so we

         21  could meet everybody's requirements, in terms of

         22  size, durability, and the industry's requirements.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 MR. CHEZAR: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Why don't
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          2  we just make sure that the legislation is clear in

          3  its intent to focus on high mileage, high mileage

          4  efficient vehicles, as opposed to an over-emphasis

          5  on hybrid electric. Because as Council Member Yassky

          6  stated before, the intent is to increase the mileage

          7  on these taxi vehicles.

          8                 MR. CHEZAR: I fully agree with that.

          9  But I think one has to recognize that today a

         10  non-hybrid that has that type of fuel efficiency is

         11  probably a very small car. So, if you want a

         12  sizeable car, it has the fuel efficiency, today the

         13  only technology that could probably achieve that is

         14  a hybrid. If there is something else out there,

         15  fine. I don't think we should be legislating

         16  technology. I have no problem with legislating fuel

         17  efficiency or legislating emissions, but the reality

         18  is the reality of what's out there today.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 We have one final witness for today's

         22  hearing, which has gone significantly over time. I

         23  want to ask Mr. Foerschler to come to the witness

         24  table.

         25                 Mr. Foerschler, thank you very much
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          2  for your patience today in waiting to testify, and

          3  we do look forward to your input.

          4                 MR. FOERSCHLER: Thank you, Chairman

          5  Liu. Members of the Council, my name is Dennis

          6  Foerschler. I represent Eldorado National. We are

          7  one of two after market conversion companies that

          8  build a low-floor minivan vehicle to qualify under

          9  the TLC's recently-approved accessible taxi

         10  regulations, taxi rules.

         11                 My testimony this afternoon is

         12  related to Intro. No. 352 and 355 specifically, and

         13  the information I want to offer is regarding the

         14  vehicles that are available today so that the

         15  statement that's made that there is presently no

         16  accessible hybrid electric vehicle available today,

         17  it is in fact a true statement.

         18                 However, there is a accessible high

         19  mileage vehicle, or excuse me, an accessible clean

         20  air vehicle that will soon be available, and that is

         21  the GM minivan product, that will be available last

         22  this year with the flex fuel option. It's a no-cost

         23  option, runs on E85, mixture of ethanol and gasoline

         24  which you're well aware of. We think that's a good

         25  first step toward the clean air and the high-mileage
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          2  vehicle that can be implemented into this.

          3                 The GM Platform is currently set to

          4  run through 2010, with a model year change then. The

          5  Chrysler Dodge Product, which is on the streets

          6  today, is set to have a model year change in 2008.

          7  Currently the Chrysler product that's on the road

          8  does not meet federal ADA requirements, that's why

          9  the GM platform was considered and approved by the

         10  TLC.

         11                 I want to thank you for your

         12  opportunity today to impart some information to this

         13  Committee, to the Council Members, and I would take

         14  any questions at this point.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         16                 So, how far off are we from that

         17  model becoming available on the market?

         18                 MR. FOERSCHLER: The ethanol fuel

         19  vehicle?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, called the E85?

         21                 MR. FOERSCHLER: The E85. That vehicle

         22  will be available under the current rules that the

         23  TLC approved probably the in the final quarter of

         24  this year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And what do you mean
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          2  by high mileage?

          3                 MR. FOERSCHLER: Well, I stand

          4  corrected. Clean air. Clean air, the flex fuel

          5  offers the clean air option. As far as the --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What does that mean,

          7  it still burns that much gas, just cleaner?

          8                 MR. FOERSCHLER: Correct. Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: How do you explain

         10  that?

         11                 MR. FOERSCHLER: The technology --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Because you're

         13  burning ethanol instead of --

         14                 MR. FOERSCHLER: Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- Fossil fuels?

         16                 MR. FOERSCHLER: It's 85 percent

         17  ethanol, which burns cleaner. It's cleaner

         18  emissions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         20                 MR. FOERSCHLER: So the end result

         21  there would be cleaner air to begin with. Higher

         22  mileage, the technology is still being worked on by

         23  the major companies, and the regulation that you're

         24  proposing, it has to be a mass-produced vehicle,

         25  which I applaud. We think that's the right
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          2  direction.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. Well,

          4  thank you very much for joining us today. We will

          5  have to follow-up with you to get more information

          6  and detail, as the legislation makes its progress.

          7                 MR. FOERSCHLER: Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          9                 There being no other witnesses for

         10  today's hearing, this Committee, this hearing of the

         11  City Council's Transportation Committee is now

         12  adjourned.

         13                 (The following written testimony was

         14  read into the record.)
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          2  June 14, 2006

          3

          4                 I want to take this opportunity to

          5  thank the Council for placing accessible taxis high

          6  on the agenda for this Council session. I believe

          7  that we are making progress toward our goal of a

          8  transportation system which no longer excludes those

          9  New Yorkers and tourists who use wheelchairs. We

         10  also recognize that clean air is a disability issue

         11  and we support efforts to bring fuel efficient

         12  vehicles into the fleet.

         13                 The upcoming medallion sales  has

         14  opened the door to wheelchair users, but the Council

         15  needs to go further to assure access.

         16                 Of the bills being considered before

         17  the Transportation Committee, some bring us closer

         18  to our goal, some help, and one we do not support.

         19                 However, none of the bills, save for

         20  Intro 378, proposed by the Taxis for All Campaign,

         21  deals with mandates, which we believe are required

         22  to achieve a fleet which is wheelchair accessible

         23  and fuel efficient. We strongly urge you to support

         24  Intro 378, which provides a timetable to create an

         25  accessible and fuel efficient fleet. The bill would
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          2  not require replacing vehicles which are fuel

          3  efficient and accessible until 2009 (for fleets) or

          4  2011 (for individual owners). We believe that such a

          5  mandate is necessary to create a universally

          6  designed fuel efficient vehicle.

          7                 We also support Intro 90-A, which

          8  will provide greater access to community car

          9  services. However, the term "equivalent service"

         10  should include the same price and hours of service

         11  and a strong enforcement mechanism, which is

         12  currently lacking in the TLC's regulation.

         13                 We, along with the entire steering

         14  committee of the Taxis for All Campaign,

         15  representing virtually every major and established

         16  disability activist organization in New York City,

         17  strongly opposes Intro 356-Central Dispatch Bill.

         18  First and foremost, it creates a separate and

         19  segregated system for wheelchair users. We have

         20  particular objection to its use for taxis, as it is

         21  a departure from the way taxis are accessed by the

         22  rest of the population. It's use for car service and

         23  especially taxis will require a longer wait for a

         24  ride than experienced by the general population.

         25                 Furthermore, unless there are
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          2  incentives, there is no guarantee that a driver of

          3  an accessible vehicle will not pick up others before

          4  a wheelchair user.

          5                 We very much appreciate your

          6  attention to these concerns.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 4:35 p.m.)
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